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Repealed by 94-20-049, filed 9/29/94, effective 
10/30/94.  Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060 and 
48.05.390.

284-07-360 Required opinions. [Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.01.-
030, 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 48.36A.250 and 48.36A.-
260. 95-02-036 (Order R 94-26), § 284-07-360, filed 
12/30/94, effective 1/30/95.] Repealed by 08-01-077 
(Matter No. R 2006-10), filed 12/17/07, effective 
1/17/08. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 
48.74.025, 48.36A.250, 48.36A.260.

284-07-370 Statement of actuarial opinion not including an asset 
adequacy analysis. [Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.01.-
030, 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 48.36A.250 and 48.36A.-
260. 95-02-036 (Order R 94-26), § 284-07-370, filed 
12/30/94, effective 1/30/95.] Repealed by 08-01-077 
(Matter No. R 2006-10), filed 12/17/07, effective 
1/17/08. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.74-
.025, 48.36A.250, 48.36A.260.

ANNUAL LIABILITY—INSURANCE REPORT

284-07-010

WAC 284-07-010  Special liability insurance report 
required annually. (1) Pursuant to RCW 48.05.380, each 
insurer authorized to write property and casualty insurance in 
the state of Washington shall record and report its Washing-
ton state loss and expense experience and other data, as 
required by RCW 48.05.390, on a form issued by the com-
missioner.

(2) Each such insurer shall complete the form in accor-
dance with the definitions and instructions provided by the 
commissioner.

(3) Each such insurer shall submit this report to the 
insurance commissioner annually. The report covering the 
period ending December 31 of each year must be submitted 
no later than May 1 of the following year.

(4) If an insurer has no data or experience to report, it is 
not required to submit a report.

(5) With respect to products liability data, the commis-
sioner finds that comparable information is included in the 
annual statement required by RCW 48.05.250. Therefore, 
products liability data shall not be reported on the form 
required by this section.

[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.05.380, and 48.30.390. 03-03-133 
(Matter No. R 2002-09), § 284-07-010, filed 1/22/03, effective 2/22/03. Stat-
utory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060 and 48.05.390. 94-20-049, § 284-07-010, 
filed 9/29/94, effective 10/30/94. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060 and 
48.05.380. 89-02-016 (Order R 88-16), § 284-07-010, filed 12/28/88. Statu-
(12/7/11) [Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 1]



284-07-050 Company Reports and Annual Statements
tory Authority:  RCW 48.05.380. 87-05-011 (Order R 87-2), § 284-07-010, 
filed 2/11/87.]

ANNUAL AND OTHER STATEMENTS

284-07-050

WAC 284-07-050  Financial statement instructions.
(1) For the purpose of this section, the following definitions 
shall apply:

(a) "Insurer" shall have the same meaning as set forth in 
RCW 48.01.050. It also includes health care service contrac-
tors registered under chapter 48.44 RCW and health mainte-
nance organizations registered under chapter 48.46 RCW, 
and fraternal benefit societies registered under chapter 
48.36A RCW.

(b) "Insurance" shall have the same meaning as set forth 
in RCW 48.01.040. It also includes prepayment of health care 
services as set forth in RCW 48.44.010(3) and prepayment of 
comprehensive health care services as set forth in RCW 
48.46.020(1).

(2) Each authorized insurer is required to file with the 
commissioner an annual statement for the previous calendar 
year in the general form and context as promulgated by the 
National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) 
for the kinds of insurance to be reported upon, and shall also 
file a copy thereof with the NAIC. To effectuate RCW 
48.05.250, 48.05.400, 48.36A.260, 48.44.095 and 48.46.080 
and to enhance consistency in the accounting treatment 
accorded various kinds of insurance transactions, the valua-
tion of assets, and related matters, insurers shall adhere to the 
appropriate Annual Statement Instructions and the Account-
ing Practices and Procedures Manuals promulgated by the 
NAIC.

(3) This section does not relieve an insurer from its obli-
gation to comply with specific requirements of the insurance 
code or rules.

(4) Annual statements:
(a) Annual statements for all domestic insurers must be 

filed electronically with the commissioner. Insurers must 
electronically transmit the annual statement, as described in 
subsection (2) of this section, in PDF or other format as noted 
on the commissioner's web site. The commissioner has the 
discretion to allow an insurer to file annual statements on 
paper. The insurer must demonstrate that filing in electronic 
form will create an undue financial hardship for the insurer. 
Applications for permission to file on paper must be received 
by the commissioner at least ninety days before the annual 
statement is due.

(b) To comply with statutory requirements that annual 
statements must be verified by the oaths of at least two of the 
insurer's officers, insurers may:

(i) Use a method of electronic signature verification that 
has been approved by the commissioner for use by the 
insurer; or

(ii) File a paper copy of the signature and jurat page of 
the annual statement at the time of the electronic filing of the 
annual statement. This paper copy must contain the original 
signature of the company officers and the notary administer-
ing the oath.

(c) Both the electronic annual statement and the verifica-
tion of that statement by the oaths of two officers must be 
received by the commissioner to complete an annual state-

ment filing. The date of receipt of the later of the electronic 
annual statement or verification is considered the receipt date 
of the annual statement.

(5)(a) Each domestic insurer shall file quarterly state-
ments of its financial condition with the commissioner and 
with the NAIC. Each foreign insurer shall file quarterly state-
ments of its financial condition with the NAIC. The commis-
sioner may require a foreign insurer to file quarterly state-
ments with the commissioner whenever, in the commis-
sioner's discretion, there is a need to more closely monitor the 
financial activities of the foreign insurer. The statements shall 
be filed in the commissioner's office not later than the forty-
fifth day or the fifteenth day of the second month after the end 
of the insurer's calendar quarters, whichever is later. The 
quarterly statements shall be in the form and content as pro-
mulgated by the NAIC for quarterly reporting by insurers, 
shall be prepared according to appropriate Annual and Quar-
terly Statement Instructions and the Accounting Practices and 
Procedures Manuals promulgated by the NAIC and shall be 
supplemented with additional information required by this 
title and by the commissioner. Quarterly statements for the 
fourth quarter are not required.

(b) Quarterly statements must be filed with the commis-
sioner by electronically transmitting the quarterly statement 
as described in this subsection, in PDF or other format as 
noted on the commissioner's web site.

(6) As a part of any investigation by the commissioner, 
the commissioner may require an insurer to file monthly 
financial statements whenever, in the commissioner's discre-
tion, there is a need to more closely monitor the financial 
activities of the insurer. Monthly financial statements shall be 
filed in the commissioner's office no later than the twenty-
fifth day of the month following the month for which the 
financial statement is being filed. Such monthly financial 
statements shall be the internal financial statements of the 
company. In addition, the commissioner may require these 
internal financial statements to be accompanied by a schedule 
converting the financial statements to reflect financial posi-
tion according to statutory accounting practices and submit-
ted in a form using the same format and designation as the 
insurer's quarterly financial statements of insurers. "Financial 
statements" as used in this subsection includes:

(a) Statement of assets;
(b) Liabilities, capital and surplus;
(c) Statements of revenue and expenses; and
(d) Statements of cash flows.
(7) Health care service contractors shall use the Health 

Statement Form promulgated by the NAIC for their statutory 
filings.

(8) Each health care service contractor's and health 
maintenance organization's annual statement shall be accom-
panied by an additional data statement form (IC-13A-HC/ IC-
14-HMO).

(9) The commissioner may allow a reasonable extension 
of the time for filing the financial statements. A request for an 
extension must be in writing. The request must be received 
prior to the due date of the filing and must state good cause 
for the extension. An extension can only be granted in writ-
ing; paper, fax, or e-mail is considered "writing" for purposes 
of this subsection.
[Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 2] (12/7/11)



Company Reports and Annual Statements 284-07-070
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.500, and 48.46.200. 07-14-104 
(Matter No. R 2007-04), § 284-07-050, filed 7/2/07, effective 8/2/07. Statu-
tory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, and 48.46.200. 02-21-120 
(Matter No. R 2002-07), § 284-07-050, filed 10/23/02, effective 11/23/02. 
Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.05.073, 48.44.050, 48.46.200. 01-
11-077 (Matter No. R 2000-09), § 284-07-050, filed 5/15/01, effective 
6/15/01. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050 and 48.46.200. 
99-16-035 (Matter No. R - 99-3), § 284-07-050, filed 7/28/99, effective 
8/28/99; 96-17-079 (Matter No. R 95-18), § 284-07-050, filed 8/21/96, 
effective 9/21/96. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 (Order 
R 92-10), § 284-07-050, filed 9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-060

WAC 284-07-060  Statement of actuarial opinion. (1) 
For purposes of this section "insurer" has the same meaning 
as set forth in RCW 48.01.050. It also includes health care 
service contractors registered under chapter 48.44 RCW, 
health maintenance organizations registered under chapter 
48.46 RCW, and fraternal benefit societies registered under 
chapter 48.36A RCW.

(2)(a) Each insurer shall include with its annual state-
ment, a statement from a qualified actuary, as defined in 
WAC 284-05-060, or as defined in subsection (4) of this sec-
tion for domestic property and casualty insurers, or as defined 
in subsection (5) of this section for health care service con-
tractors and health maintenance organizations entitled "State-
ment of Actuarial Opinion," setting forth the actuary's opin-
ion relating to the insurer's reserves and other actuarial items, 
prepared in accordance with the appropriate Annual State-
ment Instructions and Accounting Practices and Procedures 
Manuals promulgated by the National Association of Insur-
ance Commissioners. If an exemption is allowed by the 
Annual Statement Instructions and is approved by the domi-
ciliary commissioner, an insurer shall be exempt from this 
requirement (unless the commissioner of Washington makes 
a specific finding, by order, bulletin, letter, or otherwise, that 
for a specific insurer, or one or more insurers, company com-
pliance is necessary to carry out the commissioner's statutory 
responsibilities). A certified copy of the approved exemption 
must be filed with the annual statement in all jurisdictions in 
which the company is authorized.

(b) After December 31, 2002, statements of actuarial 
opinion for all domestic and foreign insurers must be filed 
electronically with the commissioner. This includes the state-
ment of actuarial opinion for the year ended December 31, 
2002. Insurers must electronically transmit the statement of 
actuarial opinion, as described in (a) of this subsection, in 
PDF or other format as noted on the commissioner's web site. 
The commissioner has the discretion to allow an insurer to 
file a statement of actuarial opinion on paper. The insurer 
must demonstrate that filing in electronic form will create an 
undue financial hardship for the insurer. Applications for per-
mission to file a paper copy must be received by the commis-
sioner at least ninety days before the statement of actuarial 
opinion is due.

(c) To comply with requirements that statements of actu-
arial opinion must be signed by the actuary, an insurer may:

(i) Use a method of electronic signature verification that 
has been approved by the commissioner for use by the 
insurer; or

(ii) File a paper copy of the signature page of the state-
ment of actuarial opinion at the time of the electronic filing of 
the statement of actuarial opinion. The paper copy must con-
tain the original signature of the actuary.

(3) This section does not relieve an insurer from its obli-
gation to comply with other requirements of the insurance 
code or rules thereunder.

(4) With respect to statements of actuarial opinion for 
property and casualty insurers domiciled in this state, a per-
son can demonstrate competency in loss reserve evaluation, 
and thus be considered to be a qualified actuary, only by 
being:

(a) A member in good standing of the Casualty Actuarial 
Society; or

(b) A member in good standing of the American Acad-
emy of Actuaries who has been approved as qualified for 
signing casualty loss reserve opinions by the Casualty Prac-
tice Council of the American Academy of Actuaries; or

(c) A person with documented experience, skill, and 
knowledge substantially equivalent to that required for either 
(a) or (b) of this subsection, acceptable to the commissioner. 
A person qualifying under this alternative (c) must be 
approved in advance by the commissioner, as prescribed by 
the Annual Statement Instructions.

(5) With respect to statements of actuarial opinion for 
health care service contractors and health maintenance orga-
nizations, the qualified actuary must be:

(a) A member in good standing of the American Acad-
emy of Actuaries;

(b) A person recognized by the American Academy of 
Actuaries as qualified for such actuarial evaluation; or

(c) A person with documented experience, skill, and 
knowledge substantially equivalent to that required for either 
(a) or (b) of this subsection, acceptable to the commissioner. 
A person qualifying under this alternative (c) must be 
approved in advance by the commissioner. In such a case, the 
health care service contractor or health maintenance organi-
zation must request approval at least ninety days prior to the 
filing of its annual statement.

[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, and 48.46.200. 02-21-120 
(Matter No. R 2002-07), § 284-07-060, filed 10/23/02, effective 11/23/02. 
Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.43.140, 48.44.050 and 48.46.200. 
94-04-045 (Order R 94-2), § 284-07-060, filed 1/27/94, effective 2/27/94. 
Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060. 93-07-020 (Order R 93-1), § 284-07-
060, filed 3/8/93, effective 4/8/93.]

284-07-070

WAC 284-07-070  Statements to be filed in electronic 
form. (1) For the purpose of this section, the following defi-
nition shall apply:  "Insurer" shall have the same meaning as 
set forth in RCW 48.01.050. It also includes health care ser-
vice contractors registered under chapter 48.44 RCW, health 
maintenance organizations registered under chapter 48.46 
RCW, and fraternal benefit societies registered under chapter 
48.36A RCW.

(2) Annual statements, quarterly statements, and other 
financial reports filed by an insurer with the commissioner or 
the National Association of Insurance Commissioners shall 
be filed in electronic form as well as on paper through 
December 31, 2002. All annual, quarterly, and other financial 
statements filed by an insurer after December 31, 2002, shall 
be filed with the commissioner in electronic form only 
according to WAC 284-07-050.

(3) Until the commissioner otherwise directs by letter, 
bulletin, or otherwise, generally or as to one or more compa-
nies, "electronic form" means, on a diskette, internet filing, or 
(12/7/11) [Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 3]
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File Transfer Protocol (FTP) filing, for all filings made prior 
to January 1, 2003. For all filings required to be made on or 
after January 1, 2003, "electronic form" will exclude diskette.

(4) An insurer who on December 31, 1996, was not sub-
ject to this rule or has not previously filed in electronic form 
to the commissioner or the NAIC, shall comply with this rule 
for the year ending December 31, 1996, and each year there-
after. To enhance the intrastate and interstate surveillance of 
the insurer's financial condition earlier filing is permitted.

(5) The requirement under this section applies to the 
extent that the NAIC has issued a diskette submission direc-
tive or has otherwise approved or prescribed an applicable 
diskette format for the particular class of insurer.

(6) The commissioner may allow a reasonable extension 
of the time for filing the financial statements. A request for an 
extension must be in writing. The request must be received 
prior to the due date of the filing and must state good cause 
for the extension. An extension can only be granted in writ-
ing; paper, fax, or e-mail is considered "writing" for purposes 
of this subsection.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, and 48.46.200. 02-21-120 
(Matter No. R 2002-07), § 284-07-070, filed 10/23/02, effective 11/23/02. 
Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050 and 48.46.200. 96-17-079 
(Matter No. R 95-18), § 284-07-070, filed 8/21/96, effective 9/21/96. Statu-
tory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060. 93-19-003 (Order R 93-7), § 284-07-070, 
filed 9/1/93, effective 10/2/93.]

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

284-07-100WAC 284-07-100  Purpose and scope. (1) The purpose 
of WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 is to improve the 
Washington state insurance commissioner's surveillance of 
the financial condition of insurers by requiring:

(a) An annual audit of financial statements reporting the 
financial position and the results of operations of insurers by 
independent certified public accountants;

(b) Communications of Internal Control Related Matters 
Noted in an Audit; and

(c) Management's report of internal control over finan-
cial reporting.

(2) Every insurer, as defined in WAC 284-07-110, shall 
be subject to WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230. Insurers 
having direct premiums written of less than one million dol-
lars in any calendar year and less than one thousand policy-
holders or certificate holders of direct written policies nation-
wide at the end of the calendar year shall be exempt from 
WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 for the year (unless 
the commissioner makes a specific finding that compliance is 
necessary for the commissioner to carry out statutory respon-
sibilities) except that insurers having assumed premiums pur-
suant to contracts and/ or treaties of reinsurance of one mil-
lion dollars or more will not be so exempt.

(3) Foreign or alien insurers filing the audited financial 
report in another state, pursuant to that state's requirement for 
filing of audited financial reports, which has been found by 
the commissioner to be substantially similar to the require-
ments herein, are exempt from WAC 284-07-120 through 
284-07-210 if:

(a) A copy of the audited financial report, Communica-
tion of Internal Control Related Matters Noted in an Audit, 
and the Accountants' Letter of Qualifications that are filed 
with the other state are filed with the NAIC in accordance 

with the filing dates specified in WAC 284-07-120, 284-07-
190 and 284-07-200, respectively (Canadian insurers may 
submit accountant's reports as filed with the Office of the 
Superintendent of Financial Institutions, Canada); and

(b) A copy of any Notification of Adverse Financial 
Condition Report filed with the other state is filed with the 
NAIC within the time specified in WAC 284-07-180.

(4) Foreign or alien insurers required to file manage-
ment's report of internal control over financial reporting in 
another state are exempt from filing the report in this state 
provided the other state has substantially similar reporting 
requirements and the report is filed with the commissioner of 
the other state within the time specified.

(5) WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 shall not pro-
hibit, preclude, or in any way limit the commissioner from 
ordering, conducting, or performing examinations of insurers 
under the rules, regulations, practices, and procedures of the 
insurance commissioner.

(6) All reports and filings required by WAC 284-07-100 
through 284-07-230 must be filed electronically with the 
commissioner. Insurers must electronically transmit the 
report or filing in PDF or other format as noted on the com-
missioner's web site. The commissioner has the discretion to 
allow an insurer to file paper copies of reports and filings 
required by WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230. The 
insurer must demonstrate that filing in electronic form will 
create an undue financial hardship for the insurer. Applica-
tions for permission to file in hard copy must be received by 
the commissioner at least ninety days before the statement of 
annual statement is due.

(7) To comply with statutory or other requirements that 
reports or filings be signed or verified, insurers and accoun-
tants may:

(a) Use a method of electronic signature verification that 
has been approved by the commissioner; or

(b) File a paper copy of the signature or verification at 
the time of the electronic transmission of the report or filing.

(8) The report or filing and the appropriate signatures 
and/or verifications must both be received to complete a fil-
ing. The date of receipt of the later of the two parts of the fil-
ing is considered the receipt date of the report or filing.

[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-100, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, and 48.46.200. 06-16-093 (Matter No. R 
2006-06), § 284-07-100, filed 7/31/06, effective 8/31/06; 02-21-120 (Matter 
No. R 2002-07), § 284-07-100, filed 10/23/02, effective 11/23/02. Statutory 
Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.43.140, 48.44.050 and 48.46.200. 94-04-045 
(Order R 94-2), § 284-07-100, filed 1/27/94, effective 2/27/94. Statutory 
Authority:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 (Order R 92-10), § 284-07-100, filed 
9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-110

WAC 284-07-110  Definitions. For the purposes of 
WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 the following defini-
tions shall apply:

(1) "Accountant" or "independent certified public 
accountant" means an independent certified public accoun-
tant or accounting firm in good standing with the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and in all 
states in which he or she is licensed to practice; for Canadian 
and British companies, the terms mean a Canadian-chartered 
or British-chartered accountant.
[Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 4] (12/7/11)



Company Reports and Annual Statements 284-07-120
(2) An "affiliate" of, or person "affiliated" with, a spe-
cific person, is a person that directly, or indirectly through 
one or more intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by, or is 
under common control with, the person specified.

(3) "Audit committee" means a committee (or equivalent 
body) established by the board of directors of an entity for the 
purpose of overseeing the accounting and financial reporting 
processes of an insurer or group of insurers, and audits of 
financial statements of the insurer or group of insurers. The 
audit committee of any entity that controls a group of insurers 
may be deemed to be the audit committee for one or more of 
these controlled insurers solely for the purposes of WAC 
284-07-100 through 284-07-230 at the election of the con-
trolling person. Refer to WAC 284-07-213(5) for exercising 
this election. If an audit committee is not designated by the 
insurer, the insurer's entire board of directors shall constitute 
the audit committee.

(4) "Audited financial report" means and includes those 
items specified in WAC 284-07-130.

(5) "Group of insurers" means those licensed insurers 
included in the reporting requirements of chapters 48.31B 
and 48.31C RCW, or a set of insurers as identified by man-
agement, for the purpose of assessing the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting.

(6) "Indemnification" means an agreement of indemnity 
or a release from liability where the intent or effect is to shift 
or limit in any manner the potential liability of the person or 
firm for failure to adhere to applicable auditing or profes-
sional standards, whether or not resulting in part from know-
ing of other misrepresentations made by the insurer or its rep-
resentatives.

(7) "Independent board member" has the same meaning 
as described in WAC 284-07-213(3).

(8) "Insurer" has the same meaning as set forth in RCW 
48.01.050. It also includes health care service contractors 
registered under chapter 48.44 RCW, health maintenance 
organizations registered under chapter 48.46 RCW, fraternal 
benefit societies registered under chapter 48.36A RCW, and 
self-funded multiple employer welfare arrangements autho-
rized under chapter 48.125 RCW.

(9) "Internal control over financial reporting" means a 
process effected by an entity's board of directors, manage-
ment and other personnel designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of the financial statements, 
i.e., those items specified in WAC 284-07-130 (2)(b) through 
(g) and includes those policies and procedures that:

(a) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reason-
able detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of assets;

(b) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the financial 
statements, i.e., those items specified in WAC 284-07-130 
(2)(b) through (g) and that receipts and expenditures are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of man-
agement and directors; and

(c) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposi-
tion of assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements, i.e., those items specified in WAC 284-07-130 
(2)(b) through (g).

(10) "NAIC" means the National Association of Insur-
ance Commissioners.

(11) "Policy holder" shall also mean subscriber.
(12) "SEC" means the United States Securities and 

Exchange Commission.
(13) "Section 404" means Section 404 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002 and the SEC's rules and regulations pro-
mulgated thereunder.

(14) "Section 404 report" means management's report on 
internal control over financial reporting as defined by the 
SEC and the related attestation report of the independent cer-
tified public accountant described in WAC 284-07-110(1).

(15) "SOX compliant entity" means an entity that either 
is required to be compliant with, or voluntarily is compliant 
with, all of the following provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002:

(a) The preapproval requirements of Section 201 (Sec-
tion 10A(i) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934);

(b) The audit committee independence requirements of 
Section 301 (Section 10A (m)(3) of the Securities and 
Exchange Act of 1934); and

(c) The internal control of financial reporting require-
ments of Section 404 (Item 308 of SEC Regulations S-K).

[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-110, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.05.250, 48.44.050, 48.44.095, 48.46.080, 
48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-07-044 (Matter No. R 2008-29), § 284-07-
110, filed 3/11/09, effective 4/11/09. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 
48.44.050, and 48.46.200. 02-21-120 (Matter No. R 2002-07), § 284-07-110, 
filed 10/23/02, effective 11/23/02. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 
48.43.140, 48.44.050 and 48.46.200. 94-04-045 (Order R 94-2), § 284-07-
110, filed 1/27/94, effective 2/27/94. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060. 
92-19-040 (Order R 92-10), § 284-07-110, filed 9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-120

WAC 284-07-120  General requirements related to 
filing and extensions for filing of annual audited financial 
reports and audit committee appointment. (1) All insurers 
shall have an annual audit by an independent certified public 
accountant and shall file an audited financial report with the 
commissioner on or before June 1 for the year ended Decem-
ber 31 immediately preceding. The commissioner may 
require an insurer to file an audited financial report earlier 
than June 1 with ninety days advance notice to the insurer.

(2) Extensions of the June 1 filing date may be granted 
by the commissioner for thirty-day periods upon a showing 
by the insurer and its independent certified public accountant 
of the reasons for requesting an extension and determination 
by the commissioner of good cause for an extension. The 
request for extension must be submitted in writing not less 
than ten days prior to the due date in sufficient detail to per-
mit the commissioner to make an informed decision with 
respect to the requested extension.

(3) If an extension is granted in accordance with the pro-
visions in subsection (2) of this section, a similar extension of 
thirty days is granted to the filing of management's report of 
internal control over financial reporting.

(4) Every insurer required to file an annual audited finan-
cial report pursuant to WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 
shall designate a group of individuals as constituting its audit 
committee, as defined in WAC 284-07-110(3). The audit 
committee of an entity that controls an insurer may be 
(12/7/11) [Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 5]
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deemed to be the insurer's audit committee for purposes of 
WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 at the election of the 
controlling person.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-120, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 (Order R 92-10), § 284-07-120, filed 
9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-130

WAC 284-07-130  Contents of annual audited finan-
cial report. (1) The annual audited financial report shall 
report the financial position of the insurer as of the end of the 
most recent calendar year and the results of its operations, 
cash flows, and changes in capital and surplus for the year 
then ended in conformity with statutory accounting practices 
prescribed, or otherwise permitted, by the commissioner of 
the state of domicile.

(2) The annual audited financial report shall include the 
following:

(a) Report of independent certified public accountant.
(b) Balance sheet reporting admitted assets, liabilities, 

capital, and surplus.
(c) Statement of operations.
(d) Statement of cash flows.
(e) Statement of changes in capital and surplus.
(f) Notes to financial statements. These notes shall be 

those required by the appropriate NAIC Annual Statement 
Instructions and NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures 
Manual. The notes shall include a reconciliation of differ-
ences, if any, between the audited statutory financial state-
ments and the annual statement filed pursuant to RCW 
48.05.250, 48.05.073, 48.36A.260, 48.43.050, 48.43.097, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, or 48.125.090 with a written descrip-
tion of the nature of these differences.

(g) The financial statements included in the audited 
financial report shall be prepared in a form and using lan-
guage and groupings substantially the same as the relevant 
sections of the annual statement of the insurer filed with the 
commissioner, and the financial statement shall be compara-
tive, presenting the amounts as of December 31 of the current 
year and the amounts as of the immediately preceding 
December 31. However, in the first year in which an insurer 
is required to file an audited financial report, the comparative 
data may be omitted.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-130, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, and 48.46.200. 02-21-120 (Matter No. R 
2002-07), § 284-07-130, filed 10/23/02, effective 11/23/02. Statutory 
Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.05.073, 48.43.097, 48.44.050, 48.46.200. 
01-21-075 (Matter No. R 2001-03), § 284-07-130, filed 10/18/01, effective 
11/18/01. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.43.140, 48.44.050 and 
48.46.200. 94-04-045 (Order R 94-2), § 284-07-130, filed 1/27/94, effective 
2/27/94. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 (Order R 92-10), 
§ 284-07-130, filed 9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-140

WAC 284-07-140  Designation of independent certi-
fied public accountant. (1) Each insurer required by WAC 
284-07-100 through 284-07-230 to file an annual audited 
financial report must, within sixty days after becoming sub-
ject to the requirement, register with the commissioner in 
writing the name and address of the independent certified 
public accountant or accounting firm retained to conduct the 

annual audit set forth in WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-
230.  Insurers not retaining an independent certified public 
accountant on the effective date of WAC 284-07-100 through 
284-07-230 shall register the name and address of their 
retained independent certified public accountant not less than 
six months before the date when the first audited financial 
report is to be filed.

(2) The insurer shall obtain a letter from the accountant, 
and file a copy with the commissioner stating that the accoun-
tant is aware of the provisions of the Washington state insur-
ance code, Title 48 RCW, and the rules and regulations that 
relate to accounting and financial matters and affirming that 
the accountant will express his or her opinion on the financial 
statements in terms of their conformity to the statutory 
accounting practices prescribed or otherwise permitted by the 
commissioner, specifying such exceptions as he or she may 
believe appropriate.

(3) If an accountant who was the accountant for the 
immediately preceding filed audited financial report is dis-
missed or resigns, the insurer shall, within five business days, 
notify the commissioner of this event. The insurer shall also 
furnish the commissioner with a separate letter within ten 
business days of the above notification stating whether in the 
twenty-four months preceding such event there were any dis-
agreements with the former accountant on any matter of 
accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclo-
sure, or auditing scope or procedure; which disagreements, if 
not resolved to the satisfaction of the former accountant, 
would have caused him or her to make reference to the sub-
ject matter of the disagreement in connection with his or her 
opinion. The disagreements required to be reported in 
response to this section include both those resolved to the for-
mer accountant's satisfaction and those not resolved to the 
former accountant's satisfaction. Disagreements contem-
plated by this section are those that occur at the decision-
making level, i.e., between personnel of the insurer responsi-
ble for presentation of its financial statements and personnel 
of the accounting firm responsible for rendering its report. 
The insurer shall also in writing request the former accoun-
tant to furnish a letter addressed to the insurer stating whether 
the accountant agrees with the statements contained in the 
insurer's letter and, if not, stating the reasons for which he or 
she does not agree; and the insurer shall furnish such respon-
sive letter from the former accountant to the commissioner 
together with its own.

[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-140, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.43.140, 48.44.050 and 48.46.200. 94-04-045 
(Order R 94-2), § 284-07-140, filed 1/27/94, effective 2/27/94. Statutory 
Authority:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 (Order R 92-10), § 284-07-140, filed 
9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-150

WAC 284-07-150  Qualifications of independent cer-
tified public accountant. (1) The commissioner shall not 
recognize a person or firm as a qualified independent certi-
fied public accountant if the person or firm:

(a) Is not in good standing with the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and in all states in 
which the accountant is licensed to practice, or, for a Cana-
dian or British company, that is not a chartered accountant; or
[Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 6] (12/7/11)
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(b) Has either directly or indirectly entered into an agree-
ment of indemnity or release from liability (collectively 
referred to as an indemnification) with respect to the audit of 
the insurer.

(2) Except as otherwise provided in WAC 284-07-100 
through 284-07-230, the commissioner shall recognize an 
independent certified public accountant as qualified as long 
as he or she conforms to the standards of his or her profes-
sion, as contained in the Code of Professional Ethics of the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) 
and statutes (chapter 18.04 RCW) and rules (chapter 4-25 
WAC) of the Washington state board of accountancy, or sim-
ilar rules. 

(3) A qualified independent certified public accountant 
may enter into any agreement with an insurer to have disputes 
relating to an audit resolved by mediation or arbitration. 
However, in the event of a delinquency proceeding com-
menced against the insurer under chapters 48.31 and 48.99 
RCW, the mediation or arbitration provisions shall operate at 
the option of the statutory successor.

(4)(a) The lead (or coordinating) partner (having primary 
responsibility for the audit) may not act in that capacity for 
more than five consecutive years.  The person shall be dis-
qualified from acting in that or a similar capacity for the same 
company or its insurance subsidiaries or affiliates for a period 
of five consecutive years. An insurer may make application 
to the commissioner for relief from the above rotation 
requirement on the basis of unusual circumstances.  This 
application must be made at least thirty days before the end of 
the calendar year. The commissioner may consider the fol-
lowing factors in determining if the relief should be granted:

(i) Number of partners, expertise of the partners, or the 
number of insurance clients in the currently registered firm;

(ii) Premium volume of the insurer; and
(iii) Number of jurisdictions in which the insurer trans-

acts business.
(b) The insurer shall file, with its annual statement filing, 

the approval for relief from WAC 284-07-150 (4)(a) with the 
states that it is licensed in or doing business in and with the 
NAIC. If the nondomestic state accepts electronic filing with 
the NAIC, the insurer shall file the approval in an electronic 
format acceptable to the NAIC.

(5) The commissioner shall not recognize as a qualified 
independent certified public accountant, nor accept any 
annual audited financial report, prepared in whole or in part 
by, any natural person who:

(a) Has been convicted of fraud, bribery, a violation of 
the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, 18 
U.S.C.Sections 1961-1968, or any dishonest conduct or prac-
tices under federal or state law;

(b) Has been found to have violated the insurance laws 
of this state with respect to any previous reports submitted 
under WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230; or

(c) Has demonstrated a pattern or practice of failing to 
detect or disclose material information in previous reports 
filed under the provisions of WAC 284-07-100 through 284-
07-230.

(6) The commissioner as provided in RCW 48.02.060 
may hold a hearing to determine whether an independent cer-
tified public accountant is qualified and, considering the evi-
dence presented, may rule that the accountant is not qualified 

for purposes of expressing his or her opinion on the financial 
statements in the annual audited financial report made pursu-
ant to WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 and require the 
insurer to replace the accountant with another whose relation-
ship with the insurer is qualified within the meaning of WAC 
284-07-100 through 284-07-230.

(7)(a) The commissioner shall not recognize as a quali-
fied independent certified public accountant, nor accept an 
annual audited financial report, prepared in whole or in part 
by an accountant who provides to an insurer, contemporane-
ously with the audit, the following nonaudit services:

(i) Bookkeeping or other services related to the account-
ing records or financial statements of the insurer;

(ii) Financial information systems design and implemen-
tation;

(iii) Appraisal or valuation services, fairness opinions, or 
contribution-in-kind reports;

(iv) Actuarially oriented advisory services involving the 
determination of amounts recorded in the financial state-
ments.  The accountant may assist an insurer in understand-
ing the methods, assumptions and inputs used in the determi-
nation of amounts recorded in the financial statements only if 
it is reasonable to conclude that the services provided will not 
be subject to audit procedures during an audit of the insurer's 
financial statements. An accountant's actuary may also issue 
an actuarial opinion or certification (opinion) on an insurer's 
reserves if the following conditions have been met:

(A) Neither the accountant nor the accountant's actuary 
has performed any management functions or made any man-
agement decisions;

(B) The insurer has competent personnel (or engages a 
third-party actuary) to estimate the reserves for which man-
agement takes responsibility; and

(C) The accountant's actuary tests the reasonableness of 
the reserves after the insurer's management has determined 
the amount of the reserves;

(v) Internal audit outsourcing services;
(vi) Management functions or human resources;
(vii) Broker or dealer, investment adviser, or investment 

banking services;
(viii) Legal services or expert services unrelated to the 

audit; or
(ix) Any other services that the commissioner deter-

mines, by rule, are impermissible.
(b) In general, the principles of independence with 

respect to services provided by the qualified independent cer-
tified public accountant are largely predicated on three basic 
principles, violations of which would impair the accountant's 
independence. The principles are that the accountant cannot 
function in the role of management, cannot audit his or her 
own work, and cannot serve in an advocacy role of the 
insurer.

(8) Insurers having direct written and assumed premiums 
of less than one hundred million dollars in any calendar year 
may request an exemption from subsection (7)(a) of this sec-
tion. The insurer shall file with the commissioner a written 
statement discussing the reasons why the insurer should be 
exempt from these provisions. If the commissioner finds, 
upon review of this statement, that compliance with WAC 
284-07-100 through 284-07-230 would constitute a financial 
(12/7/11) [Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 7]
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or organizational hardship upon the insurer, an exemption 
may be granted.

(9) A qualified independent certified public accountant 
who performs the audit may engage in other nonaudit ser-
vices, including tax services, that are not described in subsec-
tion (7)(a) of this section or that do not conflict with subsec-
tion (7)(b) of this section, only if the activity is approved in 
advance by the audit committee, in accordance with subsec-
tion (10) of this section.

(10) All auditing services and nonaudit services pro-
vided to an insurer by the qualified independent certified 
public accountant of the insurer shall be preapproved by the 
audit committee. The preapproval requirement is waived 
with respect to nonaudit services if the insurer is a SOX com-
pliant entity or a direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiary 
of a SOX compliant entity or:

(a) The aggregate amount of all such nonaudit services 
provided to the insurer constitutes not more than five percent 
of the total amount of fees paid by the insurer to its qualified 
independent certified public accountant during the fiscal year 
in which the nonaudit services are provided;

(b) The services were not recognized by the insurer at the 
time of the engagement to be nonaudit services; and

(c) The services are promptly brought to the attention of 
the audit committee and approved prior to the completion of 
the audit by the audit committee or by one or more of the 
members of the audit committee who are the members of the 
board of directors to whom authority to grant such approvals 
has been delegated by the audit committee.

(11) The audit committee may delegate to one or more 
designated members of the audit committee the authority to 
grant the preapprovals required by subsection (10) of this 
section. The decisions of any member to whom this authority 
is delegated shall be presented to the full audit committee at 
each of its scheduled meetings.

(12)(a) The commissioner shall not recognize an inde-
pendent certified public accountant as qualified for a particu-
lar insurer if a member of the board, president, chief execu-
tive officer, controller, chief financial officer, chief account-
ing officer, or any other person serving in an equivalent 
position for that insurer, was employed by the independent 
certified public accountant and participated in the audit of 
that insurer during the one-year period preceding the date that 
the most current statutory opinion is due. This section shall 
only apply to partners and senior managers involved in the 
audit. An insurer may make application to the commissioner 
for relief from the above requirement on the basis of unusual 
circumstances.

(b) The insurer shall file, with its annual statement filing, 
the approval for relief from (a) of this subsection with the 
states that it is licensed in or doing business in and the NAIC. 
If the nondomestic state accepts electronic filing with the 
NAIC, the insurer shall file the approval in an electronic for-
mat acceptable to the NAIC.

[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-150, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.05.250, 48.44.050, 48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.-
200, and 48.125.090. 09-07-044 (Matter No. R 2008-29), § 284-07-150, filed 
3/11/09, effective 4/11/09. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 
(Order R 92-10), § 284-07-150, filed 9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-160

WAC 284-07-160  Consolidated or combined audits.
An insurer may make written application to the commis-
sioner for approval to file audited consolidated or combined 
financial statements in lieu of separate annual audited finan-
cial statements if the insurer is part of a group of insurance 
companies which utilizes a pooling or one hundred percent 
reinsurance agreement that affects the solvency and integrity 
of the insurer's reserves and the insurer cedes all of its direct 
and assumed business to the pool. In such cases, a columnar 
consolidating or combining worksheet shall be filed with the 
report, as follows:

(1) Amounts shown on the consolidated or combined 
audited financial report shall be shown on the worksheet;

(2) Amounts for each insurer subject to this section shall 
be stated separately;

(3) Noninsurance operations may be shown on the work-
sheet on a combined or individual basis;

(4) Explanations of consolidating and eliminating entries 
shall be included; and 

(5) A reconciliation shall be included of any differences 
between the amounts shown in the individual insurer col-
umns of the worksheet and comparable amounts shown on 
the annual statements of the insurers.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-160, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 (Order R 92-10), § 284-07-160, filed 
9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-170

WAC 284-07-170  Scope of audit and report of inde-
pendent certified public accountant. Financial statements 
furnished pursuant to WAC 284-07-130 hereof shall be 
examined by an independent certified public accountant. The 
audit of the insurer's financial statements shall be conducted 
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. In 
accordance with AU Section 319 of the Professional Stan-
dards of the AICPA, Consideration of Internal Control in a 
Financial Statement Audit, the independent certified public 
accountant should obtain an understanding of internal control 
sufficient to plan the audit. To the extent required by AU 319, 
for those insurers required to file a management's report of 
internal control over financial reporting pursuant to WAC 
284-07-217, the independent certified public accountant 
should consider (as that term is defined in Statement of 
Auditing Standards (SAS) No. 102, Defining Professional 
Requirements in Statements on Auditing Standards, or its 
replacement) the most recently available report in planning 
and performing the audit of the statutory financial statements. 
Consideration shall be given to the procedures illustrated in 
the Financial Condition Examiner's Handbook promulgated 
by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners as 
the independent certified public accountant deems necessary.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-170, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 (Order R 92-10), § 284-07-170, filed 
9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-180

WAC 284-07-180  Notification of adverse financial 
condition. (1) The insurer required to furnish the annual 
audited financial report shall require the independent certi-
fied public accountant to report, in writing, within five busi-
[Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 8] (12/7/11)
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ness days to the board of directors or its audit committee any 
determination by the independent certified public accountant 
that the insurer has materially misstated its financial condi-
tion as reported to the commissioner as of the balance sheet 
date currently under audit or that the insurer does not meet 
the minimum capital and surplus or net worth requirements 
of the Washington state insurance code, Title 48 RCW, as of 
that date. An insurer that has received a report pursuant to this 
subsection shall forward a copy of the report to the commis-
sioner within five business days of receipt of the report and 
shall provide the independent certified public accountant 
making the report with evidence of the report being furnished 
to the commissioner. If the independent certified public 
accountant fails to receive the evidence within the required 
five business day period, the independent certified public 
accountant shall furnish to the commissioner a copy of its 
report within the next five business days.

(2) No independent public accountant shall, by virtue of 
WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230, be liable in any man-
ner to any person for any statement made in connection with 
subsection (1) of this section if the statement is made in good 
faith in compliance with subsection (1) of this section.

(3) If the accountant, subsequent to the date of the 
audited financial report filed pursuant to WAC 284-07-100 
through 284-07-230, becomes aware of facts which might 
have affected his or her report, the commissioner notes the 
obligation of the accountant to take such action as prescribed 
in Volume 1, Section AU 561 of the Professional Standards 
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
(AICPA) or its replacement.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-180, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.43.140, 48.44.050 and 48.46.200. 94-04-045 
(Order R 94-2), § 284-07-180, filed 1/27/94, effective 2/27/94. Statutory 
Authority:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 (Order R 92-10), § 284-07-180, filed 
9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-190

WAC 284-07-190  Communication of internal control 
related matters noted in an audit. (1) In addition to the 
annual audited financial report, each insurer shall furnish the 
commissioner with a written communication as to any unre-
mediated material weaknesses in its internal controls over 
financial reporting noted during the audit. Such communica-
tion shall be prepared by the accountant within sixty days 
after the filing of the annual audited financial report, and 
shall contain a description of any unremediated material 
weakness (as the term material weakness is defined by SAS 
No. 60, Communication of Internal Control Related Matters 
Noted in an Audit, or its replacement) as of December 31 
immediately preceding (so as to coincide with the audited 
financial report discussed in WAC 284-07-120(1)) in the 
insurer's internal control over financial reporting noted by the 
accountant during the course of their audit of the financial 
statements. If no unremediated material weaknesses were 
noted, the communication should so state.

(2) The insurer is required to provide a description of 
remedial actions taken or proposed to correct unremediated 
material weaknesses, if such actions are not described in the 
accountant's communication.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 

2009-09), § 284-07-190, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 (Order R 92-10), § 284-07-190, filed 
9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-200

WAC 284-07-200  Accountant's letter of qualifica-
tions. The accountant shall furnish the insurer in connection 
with, and for inclusion in, the filing of the annual audited 
financial report, a letter stating:

(1) That the accountant is independent with respect to the 
insurer and conforms to the standards of his or her profession 
as contained in the Code of Professional Ethics and pro-
nouncements of the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (AICPA) and the statutes (chapter 18.04 RCW) 
and rules (chapter 4-25 WAC) of the Washington state board 
of accountancy, or similar rules;

(2) The background and experience in general, and the 
experience in audits of insurers of the staff assigned to the 
engagement and whether each is an independent certified 
public accountant. Nothing within WAC 284-07-100 through 
284-07-230 shall be construed as prohibiting the accountant 
from utilizing such staff as he or she deems appropriate 
where use is consistent with the standards prescribed by gen-
erally accepted auditing standards;

(3) That the accountant understands the annual audited 
financial report and his or her opinion thereon will be filed in 
compliance with WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 and 
that the commissioner will be relying on this information in 
the monitoring and regulation of the financial position of 
insurers;

(4) That the accountant consents to the requirements of 
WAC 284-07-210 and that the accountant consents and 
agrees to make available for review by the commissioner, or 
the commissioner's designee or appointed agent, the workpa-
pers, as defined in WAC 284-07-210;

(5) A representation that the accountant is properly 
licensed by an appropriate state licensing authority and is a 
member in good standing in the American Institute of Certi-
fied Public Accountants (AICPA); and

(6) A representation that the accountant is in compliance 
with the requirements of WAC 284-07-150.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-200, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 (Order R 92-10), § 284-07-200, filed 
9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-210

WAC 284-07-210  Definition, availability, and main-
tenance of independent certified public accountants 
workpapers. (1) Workpapers are the records kept by the 
independent certified public accountant of the procedures fol-
lowed, the tests performed, the information obtained, and the 
conclusions reached pertinent to the accountant's audit of the 
financial statements of an insurer. Workpapers, accordingly, 
may include audit planning documentation, work programs, 
analyses, memoranda, letters of confirmation and representa-
tion, abstracts of company documents and schedules or com-
mentaries prepared or obtained by the independent certified 
public accountant in the course of his or her audit of the 
financial statements of an insurer and which support the 
accountant's opinion.

(2) Every insurer required to file an audited financial 
report pursuant to WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230, 
(12/7/11) [Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 9]
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shall require the accountant to make available for review by 
the commissioner's examiners, all workpapers prepared in the 
conduct of the accountant's audit and any communications 
related to the audit between the accountant and the insurer, at 
the offices of the insurer, at the commissioner's office or at 
any other reasonable place designated by the commissioner. 
The insurer shall require that the accountant retain the audit 
workpapers and communications until the commissioner has 
filed a report on examination covering the period of the audit 
but no longer than seven years from the date of the audit 
report.

(3) In the conduct of the aforementioned periodic review 
by the commissioner's examiners, it shall be agreed that pho-
tocopies of pertinent audit workpapers may be made and 
retained by the commissioner's office. Such reviews by the 
commissioner's examiners shall be considered investigations 
and all working papers and communications obtained during 
the course of such investigations shall be afforded the same 
confidentiality as other examination workpapers generated 
by the insurance commissioner.

[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-210, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 (Order R 92-10), § 284-07-210, filed 
9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-213

WAC 284-07-213  Requirements for audit commit-
tees. This section shall not apply to foreign or alien insurers 
licensed in this state or an insurer that is a SOX compliant 
entity or a direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiary of a 
SOX compliant entity.

(1) The audit committee shall be directly responsible for 
the appointment, compensation and oversight of the work of 
any accountant (including resolution of disagreements 
between management and the accountant regarding financial 
reporting) for the purpose of preparing or issuing the audited 
financial report or related work pursuant to WAC 284-07-100 
through 284-07-230. Each accountant shall report directly to 
the audit committee.

(2) Each member of the audit committee shall be a mem-
ber of the board of directors of the insurer or a member of the 
board of directors of an entity elected pursuant to subsection 
(5) of this section and WAC 284-07-110(3).

(3) In order to be considered independent for purposes of 
this section, a member of the audit committee may not, other 
than in his or her capacity as a member of the audit commit-
tee, the board of directors, or any other board committee, 
accept any consulting, advisory or other compensatory fee 
from the entity or be an affiliated person of the entity or any 
subsidiary thereof. However, if law requires board participa-
tion by otherwise nonindependent members, that law shall 
prevail and the members may participate in the audit commit-
tee and be designated as independent for audit committee 
purposes, unless they are an officer or employee of the 
insurer or one of its affiliates.

(4) If a member of the audit committee ceases to be inde-
pendent for reasons outside the member's reasonable control, 
that person, with notice by the responsible entity to the state, 
may remain an audit committee member for the responsible 
entity until the earlier of the next annual meeting of the 

responsible entity or one year from the occurrence of the 
event that caused the member to be no longer independent.

(5) To exercise the election of the controlling person to 
designate the audit committee for purposes of WAC 284-07-
100 through 284-07-230, the ultimate controlling person 
shall provide written notice to the commissioners of the 
affected insurers. Notification shall be made timely prior to 
the issuance of the statutory audit report and include a 
description of the basis for the election. The election can be 
changed through notice to the commissioner by the insurer, 
which shall include a description of the basis for the change. 
The election shall remain in effect for perpetuity, until 
rescinded.

(6)(a) The audit committee shall require the accountant 
that performs for an insurer any audit required by WAC 284-
07-100 through 284-07-230 to timely report to the audit com-
mittee in accordance with the requirements of SAS 61, Com-
munication with Audit Committees, or its replacement, 
including:

(i) All significant accounting policies and material per-
mitted practices;

(ii) All material alternative treatments of financial infor-
mation within statutory accounting principles that have been 
discussed with management officials of the insurer, ramifica-
tions of the use of the alternative disclosures and treatments, 
and the treatment preferred by the accountant; and

(iii) Other material written communications between the 
accountant and the management of the insurer, such as any 
management letter or schedule of unadjusted differences.

(b) If an insurer is a member of an insurance or health 
carrier holding company system, the reports required by (a) 
of this subsection may be provided to the audit committee on 
an aggregate basis for insurers in the holding company sys-
tem, provided that any substantial differences among insurers 
in the system are identified to the audit committee.

(7) The proportion of independent audit committee 
members shall meet or exceed the following criteria:

Prior Calendar Year Direct Written and Assumed Premiums

$0 - $300,000,000
Over $300,000,000 - 

$500,000,000 Over $500,000,000
No minimum require-
ments. See also Note 
A and B.

Majority (50% or 
more) of members 
shall be independent. 
See also Note A and B.

Supermajority of 
members (75% or 
more) shall be inde-
pendent. See also Note 
A.

Note A: The commissioner has authority by state law to require the 
entity's board to enact improvements to the independence of 
the audit committee membership if the insurer is in a RBC 
action level event, meets one or more of the standards of an 
insurer deemed to be in hazardous financial condition, or 
otherwise exhibits qualities of a troubled insurer.

Note B: All insurers with less than five hundred million dollars in 
prior year direct written and assumed premiums are encour-
aged to structure their audit committees with at least a 
supermajority of independent audit committee members.

Note C: Prior calendar year direct written and assumed premiums 
shall be the combined total of direct premiums and assumed 
premiums from nonaffiliates for the reporting entities.

(8) An insurer with direct written and assumed premi-
ums, excluding premiums reinsured with the Federal Crop 
Insurance Corporation and federal flood program, less than 
five hundred million dollars may make application to the 
commissioner for a waiver from this section's requirements 
based upon hardship.  The insurer shall file, with its annual 
[Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 10] (12/7/11)
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statement filing, the approval for relief from this section with 
the states that it is licensed in or doing business in and the 
NAIC. If the nondomestic state accepts electronic filing with 
the NAIC, the insurer shall file the approval in an electronic 
format acceptable to the NAIC.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-213, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09.]

284-07-215

WAC 284-07-215  Conduct of insurers in connection 
with the preparation of required reports and documents.
(1) No director or officer of an insurer shall, directly or indi-
rectly:

(a) Make or cause to be made a materially false or mis-
leading statement to an accountant in connection with any 
audit, review or communication required under WAC 284-
07-100 through 284-07-230; or

(b) Omit to state, or cause another person to omit to state, 
any material fact necessary in order to make statements 
made, in light of the circumstances under which the state-
ments were made, not misleading to an accountant in connec-
tion with any audit, review or communication required under 
WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230.

(2) No officer or director of an insurer, or any other per-
son acting under the direction thereof, shall directly or indi-
rectly take any action to coerce, manipulate, mislead or fraud-
ulently influence any accountant engaged in the performance 
of an audit pursuant to WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-
230 if that person knew or should have known that the action, 
if successful, could result in rendering the insurer's financial 
statements materially misleading.

(3) For purposes of subsection (2) of this section, actions 
that, "if successful, could result in rendering the insurer's 
financial statements materially misleading" include, but are 
not limited to, actions taken at any time with respect to the 
professional engagement period to coerce, manipulate, mis-
lead or fraudulently influence an accountant:

(a) To issue or reissue a report on an insurer's financial 
statements that is not warranted in the circumstances (due to 
material violations of statutory accounting principles pre-
scribed by the commissioner, generally accepted auditing 
standards, or other professional or regulatory standards);

(b) Not to perform audit, review or other procedures 
required by generally accepted auditing standards or other 
professional standards;

(c) Not to withdraw an issued report; or
(d) Not to communicate matters to an insurer's audit 

committee.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-215, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09.]

284-07-217

WAC 284-07-217  Management's report of internal 
control over financial reporting. (1) Every insurer required 
to file an audited financial report pursuant to WAC 284-07-
100 through 284-07-230 that has annual direct written and 
assumed premiums, excluding premiums reinsured with the 
Federal Crop Insurance Corporation and federal flood pro-
gram, of five hundred million dollars or more shall prepare a 
report of the insurer's or group of insurers' internal control 
over financial reporting, as these terms are defined in WAC 

284-07-110. The report shall be filed with the commissioner 
along with the Communications of Internal Control Related 
Matters Noted in an Audit described under WAC 284-07-
190.  Management's report of internal control over financial 
reporting shall be as of December 31 immediately preceding.

(2) Notwithstanding the premium threshold in subsec-
tion (1) of this section, the commissioner may require an 
insurer to file management's report of internal control over 
financial reporting if the insurer is in any RBC level event, or 
meets any one or more of the standards of an insurer deemed 
to be in hazardous financial condition as defined in WAC 
284-16-310.

(3) An insurer or group of insurers that is:
(a) Directly subject to Section 404;
(b) Part of a holding company system whose parent is 

directly subject to Section 404;
(c) Not directly subject to Section 404 but is a SOX com-

pliant entity; or
(d) A member of a holding company system whose par-

ent is not directly subject to Section 404 but is a SOX compli-
ant entity may file its or its parent's Section 404 Report and 
an addendum in satisfaction of this section's requirement pro-
vided that those internal controls of the insurer or group of 
insurers having a material impact on the preparation of the 
insurer's or group of insurers' audited statutory financial 
statements (those items included in WAC 284-07-130 (2)(b) 
through (g)) were included in the scope of the Section 404 
Report. The addendum shall be a positive statement by man-
agement that there are no material processes with respect to 
the preparation of the insurer's or group of insurers' audited 
statutory financial statements (those items included in WAC 
284-07-130 (2)(b) through (g)) excluded from the Section 
404 Report. If there are internal controls of the insurer or 
group of insurers that have a material impact on the prepara-
tion of the insurer's or group of insurers' audited statutory 
financial statements and those internal controls were not 
included in the scope of the Section 404 Report, the insurer or 
group of insurers may either file:

(i) A WAC 284-07-217 report; or
(ii) The Section 404 Report and a WAC 284-07-217 

report for those internal controls that have a material impact 
on the preparation of the insurer's or group of insurers' 
audited statutory financial statements not covered by the Sec-
tion 404 Report.

(4) Management's report of internal control over finan-
cial reporting shall include:

(a) A statement that management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over 
financial reporting;

(b) A statement that management has established inter-
nal control over financial reporting and an assertion, to the 
best of management's knowledge and belief, after diligent 
inquiry, as to whether its internal control over financial 
reporting is effective to provide reasonable assurance regard-
ing the reliability of financial statements in accordance with 
statutory accounting principles;

(c) A statement that briefly describes the approach or 
processes by which management evaluated the effectiveness 
of the internal control over financial reporting;
(12/7/11) [Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 11]
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(d) A statement that briefly describes the scope of work 
that is included and whether any internal controls were 
excluded;

(e) Disclosure of any unremediated material weaknesses 
in the internal control over financial reporting identified by 
management as of December 31 immediately preceding. 
Management is not permitted to conclude that the internal 
control over financial reporting is effective to provide reason-
able assurance regarding the reliability of financial state-
ments in accordance with statutory accounting principles if 
there is one or more unremediated material weakness in its 
internal control over financial reporting;

(f) A statement regarding the inherent limitations of 
internal control systems; and

(g) Signatures of the chief executive officer and the chief 
financial officer (or equivalent position/title).

(5) Management shall document and make available 
upon financial condition examination the basis upon which 
its assertions, required in subsection (4) of this section, are 
made. Management may base its assertions, in part, upon 
review, monitoring and testing of internal controls under-
taken in the normal course of its activities.

(a) Management shall have discretion as to the nature of 
the internal control framework used, and the nature and 
extent of documentation, in order to make its assertion in a 
cost-effective manner and, as such, may include assembly of 
or reference to existing documentation.

(b) Management's report on internal control over finan-
cial reporting, required by subsection (1) of this section, and 
any documentation provided in support thereof during the 
course of a financial condition examination, shall, to the 
extent provided by law, be kept confidential by the commis-
sioner.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-217, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09.]

284-07-220

WAC 284-07-220  Exemptions and effective dates. (1) 
Upon written application of any insurer, the commissioner 
may grant an exemption from compliance with any and all 
provisions of WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 if the 
commissioner finds, upon review of the application, that 
compliance with WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 
would constitute a financial or organizational hardship upon 
the insurer. An exemption may be granted at any time and 
from time to time for a specified period or periods. Within ten 
days from a denial of an insurer's written request for an 
exemption from WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230, the 
insurer may request in writing a hearing on its application for 
an exemption.  The hearing shall be held in accordance with 
the rules and procedures pertaining to administrative hear-
ings.

(2) Domestic insurers retaining a certified public 
accountant on the effective date of WAC 284-07-100 through 
284-07-230 who qualify as independent shall comply with 
WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 for the year ending 
December 31, 1992, and each year thereafter unless the com-
missioner permits otherwise.

(3) Domestic insurers not retaining a certified public 
accountant on the effective date of WAC 284-07-100 through 
284-07-230 who qualify as independent may meet the fol-

lowing schedule for compliance unless the commissioner 
permits otherwise.

(a) As of December 31, 1992, file with the commissioner 
an audited financial report.

(b) For the year ending December 31, 1992, and each 
year thereafter, the insurers shall file with the commissioner 
all reports and communications required by WAC 284-07-
100 through 284-07-210.

(4) Foreign insurers shall comply with WAC 284-07-100 
through 284-07-230 for the year ending December 31, 1992, 
and each year thereafter, unless the commissioner permits 
otherwise.

(5) The requirements of WAC 284-07-150(4) shall be in 
effect for audits of the year beginning January 1, 2010 and 
thereafter.

(6) The requirements of WAC 284-07-213 are to be in 
effect January 1, 2010. An insurer or group of insurers that is 
not required to have independent audit committee members 
or only a majority of independent audit committee members 
(as opposed to a supermajority) because the total written pre-
mium and assumed premium is below the threshold and sub-
sequently becomes subject to one of the independence 
requirements due to change in premiums shall have one year 
following the year the threshold is exceeded (but not later 
than January 1, 2010) to comply with the independence 
requirements. Likewise, an insurer that becomes subject to 
one of the independence requirements as a result of business 
combination shall have one calendar year following the date 
of acquisition or combination to comply with the indepen-
dence requirements.

(7) The requirements of WAC 284-07-150 (7) through 
(12), 284-07-190, 284-07-215, and 284-07-217 are effective 
beginning with the reporting period ending December 31, 
2010 and each year thereafter. An insurer or group of insurers 
that is not required to file a report because the total written 
premium is below the threshold and subsequently becomes 
subject to the reporting requirements shall have two years 
following the year the threshold is exceeded (but not earlier 
than December 31, 2010) to file a report. Likewise, an insurer 
acquired in a business combination shall have two calendar 
years following the date of acquisition or combination to 
comply with the reporting requirements.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-220, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.43.140, 48.44.050 and 48.46.200. 94-04-045 
(Order R 94-2), § 284-07-220, filed 1/27/94, effective 2/27/94. Statutory 
Authority:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 (Order R 92-10), § 284-07-220, filed 
9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-230WAC 284-07-230  Canadian and British companies.
(1) In the case of Canadian and British insurers, the annual 
audited financial report shall be defined as the annual state-
ment of total business on the form filed by the companies 
with their supervision authority duly audited by an indepen-
dent chartered accountant.

(2) For the insurers, the letter required in WAC 284-07-
140(2) shall state that the accountant is aware of the require-
ments relating to the annual audited report filed with the com-
missioner pursuant to WAC 284-07-120 and shall affirm that 
the opinion expressed is in conformity with those require-
ments.
[Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 12] (12/7/11)
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[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-230, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09. Statutory Author-
ity:  RCW 48.02.060. 92-19-040 (Order R 92-10), § 284-07-230, filed 
9/9/92, effective 10/10/92.]

284-07-240WAC 284-07-240  Severability provision. If any provi-
sion of WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 or its applica-
tion to any person or circumstances is held invalid, the 
remainder of WAC 284-07-100 through 284-07-230 or the 
application of the provision to other persons or circumstances 
is not affected.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, 48.46.200, 48.05.250, 
48.44.095, 48.46.080, 48.46.200, and 48.125.090. 09-20-069 (Matter No. R 
2009-09), § 284-07-240, filed 10/5/09, effective 11/5/09.]

ACTUARIAL OPINION AND MEMORANDUM 
REGULATION

284-07-310WAC 284-07-310  Purpose. The purpose of this regula-
tion, WAC 284-07-310 through and including WAC 284-07-
400, called the actuarial opinion and memorandum regula-
tion, is to prescribe:

(1) Guidelines and standards for statements of actuarial 
opinion submitted in accordance with the requirements of 
RCW 48.74.025, 48.36A.250, 48.36A.260, and for support-
ing memoranda; 

(2) Rules applicable to the appointment of an appointed 
actuary; and

(3) Guidelines and standards relating to "adequacy of 
reserves."
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 48.36A.250, 48.36A.260. 
08-01-077 (Matter No. R 2006-10), § 284-07-310, filed 12/17/07, effective 
1/17/08. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.01.030, 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 
48.36A.250 and 48.36A.260. 95-02-036 (Order R 94-26), § 284-07-310, 
filed 12/30/94, effective 1/30/95.]

284-07-320WAC 284-07-320  Authority. This regulation is issued 
pursuant to the authority vested in the commissioner under 
RCW 48.01.030, 48.02.060, and chapters 48.36A and 48.74 
RCW.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.01.030, 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 48.36A.250 
and 48.36A.260. 95-02-036 (Order R 94-26), § 284-07-320, filed 12/30/94, 
effective 1/30/95.]

284-07-330WAC 284-07-330  Scope. (1) This regulation applies to 
all life insurance companies and fraternal benefit societies 
doing business in this state, to all life insurance companies 
and fraternal benefit societies which are authorized to rein-
sure life insurance, annuities, or disability insurance business 
in this state; and to all disability insurers that file annual state-
ments on the life and accident and health blank. This regula-
tion requires the appointed actuary to use his or her profes-
sional judgment in performing the required asset analysis and 
developing the actuarial opinion and supporting memoranda, 
consistent with relevant actuarial standards of practice. The 
commissioner may specify specific methods of actuarial 
analysis and actuarial assumptions when, in the commis-
sioner's opinion, such specifications are necessary.

(2) This regulation applies to all annual statements filed 
with the commissioner on and after December 31, 2007.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 48.36A.250, 48.36A.260. 
08-01-077 (Matter No. R 2006-10), § 284-07-330, filed 12/17/07, effective 

1/17/08. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.01.030, 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 
48.36A.250 and 48.36A.260. 95-02-036 (Order R 94-26), § 284-07-330, 
filed 12/30/94, effective 1/30/95.]

284-07-340

WAC 284-07-340  Definitions. The following defini-
tions apply throughout this regulation:

(1) "Actuarial opinion" means the opinion of an 
appointed actuary regarding the adequacy of the reserves and 
related actuarial items based on an asset adequacy analysis 
set forth in WAC 284-07-380 and according to applicable 
actuarial standards of practice.

(2) "Actuarial Standards Board" means the board estab-
lished by the American Academy of Actuaries to develop and 
promulgate standards of actuarial practice.

(3) "Annual statement" means that statement required by 
RCW 48.05.250 to be filed annually by the company with the 
commissioner.

(4) "Appointed actuary" means any individual who is 
appointed or retained in accordance with the requirements set 
forth in WAC 284-07-350(3) to provide the actuarial opinion 
and supporting memorandum as required by RCW 48.74.-
025.

(5) "Asset adequacy analysis" means an analysis that 
meets the standards and other requirements set forth in WAC 
284-07-350(4).

(6) "Company" means an insurance company, fraternal 
benefit society, or reinsurer subject to this regulation.

(7) "Qualified actuary" means an individual who meets 
the requirements set forth in WAC 284-07-350(1).

[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 48.36A.250, 48.36A.260. 
08-01-077 (Matter No. R 2006-10), § 284-07-340, filed 12/17/07, effective 
1/17/08. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.01.030, 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 
48.36A.250 and 48.36A.260. 95-02-036 (Order R 94-26), § 284-07-340, 
filed 12/30/94, effective 1/30/95.]

284-07-350

WAC 284-07-350  General requirements. The state-
ment of opinion on the adequacy of the reserves and related 
actuarial items based on an asset adequacy analysis in accor-
dance with WAC 284-07-380, and a memorandum in support 
thereof in accordance with WAC 284-07-390, are required 
each year.

Statement of actuarial opinion:
(1) "Qualified actuary" means an individual who:
(a) Is a member in good standing of the American Acad-

emy of Actuaries; and
(b) Is qualified to sign statements of actuarial opinion for 

life and health insurance company annual statements in 
accordance with the American Academy of Actuaries qualifi-
cation standards for actuaries signing such statements or 
equivalent standards acceptable to the commissioner; and

(c) Is familiar with the valuation requirements applicable 
to life and health insurance companies; and

(d) Has not been found by the commissioner (or if so 
found has subsequently been reinstated as a qualified actu-
ary), following appropriate notice to have:

(i) Violated any provision of, or any obligation imposed 
by, Title 48 RCW or other law or any applicable regulation or 
order of the commissioner in the course of his or her dealings 
as a qualified actuary;

(ii) Been found guilty of fraudulent or dishonest prac-
tices;
(12/7/11) [Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 13]
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(iii) Demonstrated his or her incompetence, lack of 
cooperation, or untrustworthiness to act as a qualified actu-
ary;

(iv) Submitted to the commissioner during the past five 
years, an actuarial opinion or memorandum that the commis-
sioner rejected because it did not meet the provisions of this 
regulation or standards set by the Actuarial Standards Board; 
or

(v) Resigned or been removed as an actuary within the 
past five years as a result of acts or omissions indicated in any 
adverse report on examination or as a result of failure to 
adhere to generally acceptable actuarial standards; and

(e) Has not failed to notify the commissioner of any 
action taken by any commissioner of any other state similar 
to that under (d) of this subsection.

(f) The commissioner may accept equivalent qualifica-
tions in place of those in (a) and (b) of this subsection if the 
individual has otherwise demonstrated his or her actuarial 
competence to the satisfaction of the commissioner, and 
meets the qualifications in (c), (d), and (e) of this subsection.

(2) "Appointed actuary" means a qualified actuary who 
is appointed or retained to prepare the statement of actuarial 
opinion required by this regulation; either directly by, or by 
the authority of, the board of directors through an executive 
officer of the company.

(a) The company shall give the commissioner timely 
written notice of the following:  The name, title (and, in the 
case of a consulting actuary, the name of the firm), and man-
ner of appointment or retention of each person appointed or 
retained by the company as an appointed actuary.

(b) The company must state in its notice that the 
appointed actuary meets the requirements set forth in subsec-
tion (1) of this section.

(c) After the company furnishes the notice, no further 
notice is required with respect to this person, except the fol-
lowing, if applicable:

(i) The company must give the commissioner timely 
written notice if the actuary ceases to be appointed or retained 
as an appointed actuary; and

(ii) The company must give the commissioner timely 
written notice if the actuary fails to meet the requirements set 
forth in subsection (2) of this section.

(d) If any person appointed or retained as an appointed 
actuary replaces a previously appointed actuary, the notice 
must include that information and give the reasons for 
replacement.

(3) Standards for asset adequacy analysis:  Unless the 
commissioner approves equivalents in advance, the asset 
adequacy analysis required by this regulation:

(a) Must conform to the standards of practice as promul-
gated from time to time by the Actuarial Standards Board and 
to any additional standards under this regulation, and must 
form the basis of the statement of actuarial opinion in accor-
dance with this regulation; and 

(b) Must be based on methods of analysis that are 
deemed appropriate for such purposes by the Actuarial Stan-
dards Board.

(4) Liabilities to be covered:
(a) As required by RCW 48.74.025, the statement of 

actuarial opinion applies to all in force business on the state-
ment date regardless of when or where issued, including 

reserves of Exhibits 5, 6, and 7, and claim liabilities in 
Exhibit 8, Part 1 and equivalent items in the separate account 
statement or statements. 

(b) If the appointed actuary determines as the result of 
asset adequacy analysis that a reserve should be held in addi-
tion to the aggregate reserve held by the company calculated 
in accordance with methods set forth in RCW 48.74.040, 
48.74.070, 48.74.080, and 48.74.090, the company must 
establish the appropriate additional reserve.

(c) Additional reserves established under (b) of this sub-
section and deemed not necessary in subsequent years may 
be released. Any amounts released must be disclosed in the 
actuarial opinion for the applicable year. The release of these 
reserves will not be deemed an adoption of a lower standard 
of valuation.

[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 48.36A.250, 48.36A.260. 
08-01-077 (Matter No. R 2006-10), § 284-07-350, filed 12/17/07, effective 
1/17/08. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.01.030, 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 
48.36A.250 and 48.36A.260. 95-02-036 (Order R 94-26), § 284-07-350, 
filed 12/30/94, effective 1/30/95.]

284-07-380

WAC 284-07-380  Statement of actuarial opinion 
based on an asset adequacy analysis. (1) General descrip-
tion:  The statement of actuarial opinion must include the fol-
lowing:

(a) A paragraph identifying the appointed actuary and his 
or her qualifications (see subsection (2)(a) of this section);

(b) A scope paragraph identifying the subjects on which 
an opinion is to be expressed and describing the scope of the 
appointed actuary's work, including a tabulation delineating 
the reserves and related actuarial items which have been ana-
lyzed for asset adequacy and the method of analysis, (see 
subsection (2)(b) of this section) and identifying the reserves 
and related actuarial items covered by the opinion which 
have not been so analyzed;

(c) A reliance paragraph describing those areas, if any, 
where the appointed actuary has deferred to other experts in 
developing data, procedures or assumptions, e.g., anticipated 
cash flows from currently owned assets, including variation 
in cash flows according to economic scenarios (see subsec-
tion (2)(c) of this section), supported by a statement of each 
expert relied on in the form prescribed by subsection (5) of 
this section; and

(d) An opinion paragraph expressing the appointed actu-
ary's opinion concerning the adequacy of the supporting 
assets to mature the liabilities (see subsection (2)(f) of this 
section).

(e) One or more of the following paragraphs will be 
needed in individual company cases, as follows:

(i) If the appointed actuary considers it necessary to state 
a qualification of his or her opinion; 

(ii) If the appointed actuary must disclose the method of 
aggregation for reserves of different products or lines of busi-
ness for asset adequacy analysis; 

(iii) If the appointed actuary must disclose an inconsis-
tency in the method of analysis or basis of asset allocation 
used at the prior opinion date with that used for this opinion;

(iv) If the appointed actuary must disclose whether addi-
tional reserves of the prior opinion date are released as of this 
opinion date, and the extent of the release; or
[Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 14] (12/7/11)
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(v) If the appointed actuary chooses to add a paragraph 
briefly describing the assumptions which form the basis for 
the actuarial opinion.

(2) Recommended language:  The following paragraphs 
must be included in the statement of actuarial opinion in 
accordance with this section. Language is that which in typi-
cal circumstances shall be included in a statement of actuarial 
opinion. The language may be modified as needed to meet 
the circumstances of a particular case, but the appointed actu-
ary must clearly express his or her professional judgment. In 
any event, the opinion must include all pertinent aspects of 
the language provided in this section.

(a) The opening paragraph must generally state the 
appointed actuary's relationship to the company and his or 
her qualifications to sign the opinion.

(i) For a company actuary, the opening paragraph of the 
actuarial opinion must read substantially as follows:

"I, [name], am [title] of [insurance company name] and 
a member of the American Academy of Actuaries. I was 
appointed by, or by the authority of, the Board of Direc-
tors of that company to render this opinion as stated in 
the letter to the Commissioner dated [insert date]. I meet 
the Academy qualification standards for rendering the 

opinion and am familiar with the valuation requirements 
applicable to life and disability insurance companies."

(ii) For a consulting actuary, the opening paragraph must 
contain a statement substantially similar to the following:

"I, [name], a member of the American Academy of 
Actuaries, am associated with the firm of [name of con-
sulting firm]. I have been appointed by, or by the author-
ity of, the Board of Directors of [name of company] to 
render this opinion as stated in the letter to the Commis-
sioner dated [insert date]. I meet the Academy qualifica-
tion standards for rendering the opinion and am familiar 
with the valuation requirements applicable to life and 
disability insurance companies."

(b) The scope paragraph must include a statement sub-
stantially similar to the following:

"I have examined the actuarial assumptions and actuar-
ial methods used in determining reserves and related 
actuarial items listed below, as shown in the annual 
statement of the company, as prepared for filing with 
state regulatory officials, as of December 31, 20[ ]. Tab-
ulated below are those reserves and related actuarial 
items which have been subjected to asset adequacy 
analysis.

Asset Adequacy Tested Amounts Reserves and Liabilities

Statement Item

Formula
Reserves

(1)

Additional
Actuarial

Reserves (a)
(2)

Analysis
Method (b)

Other
Amount

(3)

Total Amount
(1) + (2) + (3)

(4)
Exhibit 5
A Life Insurance
B Annuities
C Supplementary Contracts

With Life Contingencies
D Accidental Death

Benefit
E Disability - Active
F Disability - Disabled
G Miscellaneous

Total (Exhibit 5 Item 1, 
Page 3)

Exhibit 6
A Active Life Reserve
B Claim Reserve

Total (Exhibit 6 Item 2, 
Page 3)

Exhibit 7
Premiums and Other 
Deposit Funds (Column 6, 
Line 14)
Guaranteed Interest 
Contracts (Column 2, Line 
14)
Annuities Certain (Col-
umn 3, Line 14)
Supplemental Contracts 
(Column 4, Line 14)
Dividend Accumulations 
or Refunds
(Column 5, Line 14)
(12/7/11) [Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 15]
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Notes to table of reserves and related actuarial items:

Page and line numbers refer to the 2005 blank. Correspond-
ing entries from blanks from later years are to be substituted 
as appropriate.

(a) The additional actuarial reserves are the reserves 
established under WAC 284-07-350 (5)(b).

(b) The appointed actuary must state the method of 
analysis, determined in accordance with the stan-
dards for asset adequacy analysis referred to in 
WAC 284-07-350(4), by means of symbols which 
shall be defined in footnotes to the table.

(c) Allocated amount of Asset Valuation Reserve 
(AVR)."

(c) If the appointed actuary has relied on other experts to 
develop any portion of the analysis, the reliance paragraph 
must include a statement substantially similar to the follow-
ing:

"I have relied on [name], [title] for [e.g., anticipated cash 
flows from currently owned assets, including variations 
in cash flows according to economic scenarios, or cer-
tain critical aspects of the analysis performed in con-
junction with forming my opinion] as certified in the 
attached statement. I have reviewed the information 
relied upon for reasonableness."

A statement of reliance on other experts must be accom-
panied by a statement by each expert in the form prescribed 
by subsection (5) of this section.

(d) If the appointed actuary has examined the underlying 
asset and liability records, the reliance paragraph must also 
include substantially the following statement:

"My examination included a review of the actuarial 
assumptions, actuarial methods, the underlying basic 
asset and liability records, and other tests of the actuar-

ial calculations I considered necessary. I also reconciled 
the underlying basic asset and liability records to 
[exhibits and schedules listed as applicable] of the com-
pany's current annual statement."

(e) If the appointed actuary has not examined the under-
lying records, but has relied upon listings or summaries of 
policies in force, or asset records, or both prepared by the 
company, the reliance paragraph must include a statement 
substantially similar to the following:

"In forming my opinion on [specify types of reserves] I 
relied upon data prepared by [name and title of company 
officer certifying in-force records or other data] as certi-
fied in the attached statements. I evaluated that data for 
reasonableness and consistency. I also reconciled that 
data to [exhibits and schedules to be listed as applicable] 
of the company's current annual statement. In other 
respects my examination included review of the actuar-
ial assumptions and actuarial methods used and tests of 
the actuarial calculations I considered necessary."

The paragraph must be accompanied by a signed state-
ment by each person relied upon based on the form set forth 
in subsection (5) of this section.

(f) The opinion paragraph must include a statement sub-
stantially similar to the following:

"In my opinion the reserves and related actuarial 
values concerning the statement items identified 
above:

(i) Are computed in accordance with presently 
accepted actuarial standards consistently 
applied and are fairly stated, in accordance with 
sound actuarial principles;

(ii) Are based on actuarial assumptions which pro-
duce reserves at least as great as those called for 
in any contract provision as to reserve basis and 
method, and are in accordance with all other 
contract provisions;

(iii) Meet the requirements of the insurance laws 
and regulations of the state of [state of domi-
cile] and are at least as great as the minimum 
aggregate amounts required by the state in 
which this statement is filed;

(iv) Are computed on the basis of assumptions con-
sistent with those used in computing the corre-
sponding items in the annual statement of the 

Total (Exhibit 7, Item 3, 
Page 3)

Exhibit 8 Part 1
1 Life (Page 3, Line 4.1)
2 Health (Page 3, Line 4.2)

Total Exhibit 8, Part 1
Separate Accounts (Page 
3 of the Annual Statement 
of the Separate Accounts, 
Lines 1 and 2)

TOTAL RESERVES

IMR (General Account, Page  
3, Line   9.4 )
IMR (Separate Accounts, 
Page 3, Line 3)
AVR (Page  3, Line  24.1 ) (c)
Net Deferred and Uncollected 
Premium

Asset Adequacy Tested Amounts Reserves and Liabilities

Statement Item

Formula
Reserves

(1)

Additional
Actuarial

Reserves (a)
(2)

Analysis
Method (b)

Other
Amount

(3)

Total Amount
(1) + (2) + (3)

(4)
[Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 16] (12/7/11)
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preceding year-end (with any exceptions noted 
below); 

(v) Include provision for all actuarial reserves and 
related statement items which ought to be 
established.

The reserves and related items, when considered in 
light of the assets held by the company with respect 
to such reserves and related actuarial items includ-
ing, but not limited to, the investment earnings on 
the assets, and the considerations anticipated to be 
received and retained under the policies and con-
tracts, make adequate provision, according to pres-
ently accepted actuarial standards of practice, for 
the anticipated cash flows required by the contrac-
tual obligations and related expenses of the com-
pany.

The actuarial methods, considerations, and analyses 
used in forming my opinion conform to the appro-
priate Standards of Practice as promulgated by the 
Actuarial Standards Board, which standards form 
the basis of this statement of opinion.

This opinion is updated annually as required by stat-
ute. To the best of my knowledge, there have been 
no material changes from the applicable date of the 
annual statement to the date of the rendering of this 
opinion which should be considered in reviewing 
this opinion.

or

The following material change(s) which occurred 
between the date of the statement for which this 
opinion is applicable and the date of this opinion 
should be considered in reviewing this opinion: 
(Describe the change or changes.)

The impact of unanticipated events subsequent to 
the date of this opinion is beyond the scope of this 
opinion. The analysis of asset adequacy portion of 
this opinion should be viewed recognizing that the 
company's future experience may not follow all the 
assumptions used in the analysis.

(3) Assumptions for new issues:  The adoption for new 
issues or new claims or other new liabilities of an actuarial 
assumption which differs from a corresponding assumption 
used for prior new issues or new claims or other new liabili-
ties is not a change in actuarial assumptions within the mean-
ing of this section.

(4) Adverse opinions:  If the appointed actuary is unable 
to form an opinion, then he or she must refuse to issue a state-
ment of actuarial opinion. If the appointed actuary's opinion 
is adverse or qualified, then he or she must issue an adverse 
or qualified actuarial opinion explicitly stating the reason(s) 
for the adverse opinion. This statement must follow the scope 
paragraph and precede the opinion paragraph.

(5) Reliance on data furnished by other persons: If the 
appointed actuary does not express an opinion as to the accu-
racy and completeness of the listings and summaries of poli-
cies in force or if the actuary relies on the certification of oth-
ers on matters concerning the accuracy or completeness of 
any data underlying the actuarial opinion, or the appropriate-
ness of any other information used by the appointed actuary 
in forming the actuarial opinion, the actuarial opinion must 
include the names of the persons the actuary is relying upon 
and a precise identification of the items subject to reliance. In 
addition, the persons on whom the appointed actuary relies 
must provide a certification that precisely identifies the items 
on which the person is providing information and a statement 
as to the accuracy, completeness or reasonableness of the 
items, as applicable. This certification must include the sig-
nature, title, company's legal name, address and telephone 
number of the person providing the certification, and the date 
on which it is signed. This certification must include the 
reporting date, the name of the appointed actuary, and must 
be attached to the opinion, in a form substantially similar to 
the following:

"I [name of officer], [title], of [name of company], 
hereby affirm that the listings and summaries of poli-
cies and contracts in force as of December 31, 20[ ], 
and other liabilities prepared for and submitted to 
[name of appointed actuary] were prepared under my 
direction and, to the best of my knowledge and belief, 
are substantially accurate and complete.

[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 48.36A.250, 48.36A.260. 
08-01-077 (Matter No. R 2006-10), § 284-07-380, filed 12/17/07, effective 
1/17/08. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060. 06-12-077 (Matter No. R 
2006-04), § 284-07-380, filed 6/6/06, effective 7/7/06. Statutory Authority: 
RCW 48.01.030, 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 48.36A.250 and 48.36A.260. 95-02-
036 (Order R 94-26), § 284-07-380, filed 12/30/94, effective 1/30/95.]

Reviser’s note:  The brackets and enclosed material in the text of the 
above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency.

284-07-390

WAC 284-07-390  Description of actuarial memoran-
dum including an asset adequacy analysis and regulatory 
asset adequacy issues summary. (1)(a) In accordance with 
RCW 48.74.025, the appointed actuary must prepare a mem-
orandum to the company describing the analysis done in sup-
port of his or her opinion regarding the reserves. The memo-
randum must be made available for examination by the com-
missioner upon his or her request but will be returned to the 
company after the examination and will not be considered a 
record of the commissioner or subject to automatic filing 
with the commissioner.

(b) In preparing the memorandum, the appointed actuary 
may rely on, and include as a part of his or her own memoran-
dum, memoranda prepared and signed by other actuaries who 

Signature of Appointed Actuary

Address of Appointed Actuary

Telephone Number of Appointed Actuary

Date"

Signature of the Officer of the Company 

Address of the Officer of the Company 

Telephone Number of the Officer of the 
Company 

Date"
(12/7/11) [Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 17]
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are qualified within the meaning of WAC 284-07-350(2), 
with respect to the areas covered in such memoranda, and 
must include a statement to that effect in their memoranda.

(c) If the commissioner requests a memorandum and an 
adequate memorandum is not provided within ten days after 
the request, or, if the commissioner finds that the analysis 
described in the memorandum fails to meet the standards of 
the Actuarial Standards Board or the standards and require-
ments of this regulation, the commissioner may designate a 
qualified actuary to review the opinion and prepare the sup-
porting memorandum required for review. All reasonable and 
necessary expenses of the independent review must be paid 
by the company but all expenses related to the review will be 
directed and controlled by the commissioner.

(d)(i) The reviewing actuary must have the same status 
as an examiner for purposes of obtaining data from the com-
pany and the work papers and documentation of the review-
ing actuary must be retained by the commissioner. Informa-
tion provided by the company to the reviewing actuary and 
included in the work papers will be considered material pro-
vided by the company to the commissioner and will be kept 
confidential to the same extent as prescribed by law with 
respect to other material provided by the company to the 
commissioner.

(ii) The reviewing actuary must not be an employee of a 
consulting firm involved with the preparation of any prior 
memorandum or opinion for the company for the current year 
or any one of the preceding three years.

(e) In accordance with RCW 48.74.025, the appointed 
actuary must prepare a regulatory asset adequacy issues sum-
mary according to the requirements set forth in subsection (3) 
of this section. The regulatory asset adequacy issues sum-
mary must be submitted no later than March 15 of the year 
following the year for which a statement of actuarial opinion 
based on asset adequacy is required. Except for a domestic 
life insurance company, the regulatory asset adequacy issues 
summary must be submitted only upon request of the com-
missioner. The regulatory asset adequacy issues summary 
has the standing of a memorandum in support of the actuarial 
opinion, and will be kept confidential to the extent and under 
the conditions provided for in RCW 48.74.025(4).

(2) When an actuarial opinion is provided, the memoran-
dum must demonstrate that the analysis has been completed 
in accordance with the standards for asset adequacy set forth 
in WAC 284-07-350(4) and any additional standards required 
by the commissioner. The memorandum must include the fol-
lowing:

(a) For reserves:
 (i) Product descriptions including market description, 
underwriting and other aspects of a risk profile, and the spe-
cific risks the appointed actuary deems significant;

(ii) Sources of liabilities in force;
(iii) Reserve methods and bases;
(iv) Investment reserves;
(v) Reinsurance arrangements;
(vi) Identification of any explicit or implied guarantees 

made by the general account in support of benefits provided 
through a separate account or under a separate account policy 
or contract and the methods used by the appointed actuary to 
provide for the guarantees in the asset adequacy analysis;

(vii) Documentation of assumptions, including compari-
sons with experience, to test reserves for the following:

(A) Lapse rates, both base and excess;
(B) Interest crediting rate strategy;
(C) Mortality;
(D) Policyholder dividend strategy;
(E) Competitor or market interest rate;
(F) Annuitization rates;
(G) Commissions and expenses; and
(H) Morbidity.
The documentation of the assumptions must allow an 

actuary reviewing the actuarial memorandum to form a con-
clusion regarding the reasonableness of the assumptions.

(b) For assets:
(i) Portfolio descriptions, including a risk profile disclos-

ing the quality, distribution, and types of assets;
(ii) Investment and disinvestment assumptions;
(iii) Sources of asset data;
(iv) Asset valuation bases;
(v) Documentation of assumptions made for:
(A) Default costs;
(B) Bond call function;
(C) Mortgage prepayment function;
(D) Determining market value for assets sold due to dis-

investment strategy; and
(E) Determining yield on assets acquired through the 

investment strategy.
The documentation of the assumptions must allow an 

actuary reviewing the actuarial memorandum to form a con-
clusion regarding the reasonableness of the assumptions.

(c) Analysis basis:
(i) Methodology;
(ii) Rationale for inclusion or exclusion of different 

blocks of business and how pertinent risks were analyzed;
(iii) Rationale for degree of rigor in analyzing different 

blocks of business, including the level of "materiality" that 
was used in determining how rigorously to analyze different 
blocks of business;

(iv) Criteria for determining asset adequacy, including 
the precise basis for determining if assets are adequate to 
cover reserves under "moderately adverse conditions" or 
other conditions, as specified in relevant actuarial standards 
of practice;

(v) Consideration of the impact of federal income taxes; 
and

(vi) The method of treating reinsurance in the asset ade-
quacy analysis.

(d) Sensitivity testing:  Impact of changes in assumptions 
used in asset adequacy analysis, based on sensitivity tests 
performed.

(e) Material changes:  Summary of material changes in 
methods, procedures, or assumptions from prior year's asset 
adequacy analysis.

(f) Results:
(i) Schedules under each required scenario showing the 

cash flows by each of the major items of income, benefits, 
and expenses, statutory gains or losses, and statutory balance 
sheet, as modeled, for each year in the projection period; and

(ii) Summary of results.
(g) Conclusion(s).
[Ch. 284-07 WAC—p. 18] (12/7/11)
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(3) The regulatory asset adequacy issues summary must 
contain the name of the company for which the regulatory 
asset adequacy issues summary is being supplied and must be 
signed and dated by the appointed actuary providing the actu-
arial opinion. The regulatory asset adequacy issues summary 
must include all of the following:

(a) Descriptions of the scenarios tested, including 
whether those scenarios are stochastic or deterministic, and 
the sensitivity testing performed relative to those scenarios.

(i) If certain tests produce negative ending surplus in the 
aggregate, the actuary must describe those tests and state the 
amount of additional reserve as of the valuation date that, if 
held, would eliminate the negative aggregate surplus values.

(ii) The actuary must determine ending surplus values by 
either:

(A) Extending the projection period until the in force and 
associated assets and liabilities at the end of the projection 
period are immaterial; or

(B) Adjusting the surplus amount at the end of the pro-
jection period by an amount that appropriately estimates the 
value that can reasonably be expected to arise from the assets 
and liabilities remaining in force.

(b) An explanation of the extent to which the appointed 
actuary uses assumptions in the asset adequacy analysis that 
are materially different from the assumptions used in the pre-
vious asset adequacy analysis.

(c) A description of the amount of reserves and the iden-
tity of the product lines that had been subjected to asset ade-
quacy analysis in the prior opinion but were not subject to 
analysis for the current opinion.

(d) Comments on any interim results that may be of sig-
nificant concern to the appointed actuary.

(e) The methods used by the actuary to recognize the 
impact of reinsurance on the company's cash flows, including 
both assets and liabilities, under each of the scenarios tested.

(f) A paragraph explaining whether the actuary is satis-
fied that all options whether explicit or embedded, in any 
asset or liability (including but not limited to those affecting 
cash flows embedded in fixed income securities) and equity-
like features in any investments have been appropriately con-
sidered in the asset adequacy analysis.

(4) The memorandum must include a statement substan-
tially similar to the following:

"Actuarial methods, considerations, and analyses used in 
the preparation of this memorandum conform to the appropri-
ate Standards of Practice as promulgated by the Actuarial 
Standards Board, which standards form the basis for this 
memorandum."
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 48.36A.250, 48.36A.260. 
08-01-077 (Matter No. R 2006-10), § 284-07-390, filed 12/17/07, effective 
1/17/08. Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.01.030, 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 
48.36A.250 and 48.36A.260. 95-02-036 (Order R 94-26), § 284-07-390, 
filed 12/30/94, effective 1/30/95.]

284-07-400WAC 284-07-400  Additional considerations for anal-
ysis. (1) Aggregation:  For the asset adequacy analysis for the 
statement of actuarial opinion provided in accordance with 
WAC 284-07-380, reserves and assets may be aggregated by 
either of the following methods:

(a) Aggregate the reserves and related actuarial items, 
and the supporting assets, for different products or lines of 

business, before analyzing the adequacy of the combined 
assets to mature the combined liabilities. The appointed actu-
ary must be satisfied that the assets held in support of the 
reserves and related actuarial items so aggregated are man-
aged in such a manner that the cash flows from the aggre-
gated assets are available to help mature the liabilities from 
the blocks of business that have been aggregated.

(b) Aggregate the results of asset adequacy analysis of 
one or more products or lines of business, the reserves for 
which prove through analysis to be redundant, with the 
results of one or more products or lines of business, the 
reserves for which prove through analysis to be deficient. The 
appointed actuary must be satisfied that the asset adequacy 
results for the various products or lines of business for which 
the results are so aggregated:

(i) Are developed using consistent economic scenarios; 
or

(ii) Are subject to mutually independent risks, i.e., the 
likelihood of events impacting the adequacy of the assets 
supporting the redundant reserves is completely unrelated to 
the likelihood of events impacting the adequacy of the assets 
supporting the deficient reserves.

(c) In the event of any aggregation, the actuary must dis-
close that in his or her opinion such reserves were aggregated 
on the basis of method (a), (b)(i), or (b)(ii) of this subsection, 
whichever is applicable, and describe the aggregation in the 
supporting memorandum.

(2) Selection of assets for analysis:  The appointed actu-
ary shall analyze only those assets held in support of the 
reserves which are the subject for specific analysis, hereafter 
called "specified reserves."  A particular asset or portion 
thereof supporting a group of specified reserves cannot sup-
port any other group of specified reserves. An asset may be 
allocated over several groups of specified reserves. The 
annual statement value of the assets held in support of the 
reserves shall not exceed the annual statement value of the 
specified reserves, except as provided in subsection (3) of 
this section. If the method of asset allocation is not consistent 
from year to year, the extent of its inconsistency should be 
described in the supporting memorandum.

(3) Use of assets supporting the interest maintenance 
reserve and the asset valuation reserve:

(i) An appropriate allocation of assets in the amount of 
the interest maintenance reserve (IMR), whether positive or 
negative, must be used in any asset adequacy analysis. Anal-
ysis of risks regarding asset default may include an appropri-
ate allocation of assets supporting the asset valuation reserve 
(AVR); these AVR assets may not be applied for any other 
risks with respect to reserve adequacy. Analysis of these and 
other risks may include assets supporting other mandatory or 
voluntary reserves available to the extent not used for risk 
analysis and reserve support.

(ii) The amount of the assets used for the AVR shall be 
disclosed in the Table of Reserves and Liabilities of the opin-
ion and in the memorandum.

(iii) The method used for selecting particular assets or 
allocated portions of assets shall be disclosed in the memo-
randum.

(4) Required interest scenarios:
(a) For the purpose of performing the asset adequacy 

analysis required by this regulation, the qualified actuary 
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shall follow standards adopted by the Actuarial Standards 
Board or equivalent standards approved in advance by the 
commissioner. In the analysis, the appointed actuary shall 
consider the effect of at least the following interest rate sce-
narios:

(i) Level with no deviation;
(ii) Uniformly increasing over ten years at a half percent 

per year and then level; 
(iii) Uniformly increasing at one percent per year over 

five years and then uniformly decreasing at one percent per 
year to the original level at the end of ten years and then level;

(iv) An immediate increase of three percent and then 
level;

(v) Uniformly decreasing over ten years at a half percent 
per year and then level;

(vi) Uniformly decreasing at one percent per year over 
five years and then uniformly increasing at one percent per 
year to the original level at the end of ten years and then level; 
and

(vii) An immediate decrease of three percent and then 
level.

(b) For all scenarios used, projected interest rates for a 
five-year treasury note need not be reduced beyond the point 
where the five-year treasury note yield would be at fifty per-
cent of its initial level.

(c) The beginning interest rates may be based on interest 
rates for new investments as of the valuation date similar to 
recent investments allocated to support the product being 
tested or be based on an outside index, such as treasury 
yields, of assets of the appropriate length on a date close to 
the valuation date.

(d) The method used to determine the beginning yield 
curve and associated interest rates shall be specifically 
defined. The beginning yield curve and associated interest 
rates shall be consistent for all interest rate scenarios.

(5) Documentation:  The appointed actuary shall retain 
on file, for at least seven years, sufficient documentation so 
that it will be possible to determine the procedures followed, 
the analyses performed, the bases for assumptions, and the 
results obtained.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.01.030, 48.02.060, 48.74.025, 48.36A.250 
and 48.36A.260. 95-02-036 (Order R 94-26), § 284-07-400, filed 12/30/94, 
effective 1/30/95.]

PERMITTED ACCOUNTING PRACTICES

284-07-500

WAC 284-07-500  Definitions. For purposes of this 
rule:

(1) A "permitted accounting practice" is an accounting 
practice that departs from the National Association of Insur-
ance Commissioners (NAIC) Accounting Practices and Pro-
cedures Manual or state prescribed accounting practices, and 
has been approved in writing by the commissioner.

(2) "State prescribed accounting practices" are those 
accounting practices that are incorporated directly or by ref-
erence by Titles 48 RCW and 284 WAC applicable to domes-
tic insurers.

(3) A "domestic insurer" includes an entity organized 
under the laws of this state as an insurer authorized under 
chapter 48.05 RCW, a fraternal benefit society licensed under 
chapter 48.36A RCW, a health care service contractor regis-

tered under chapter 48.44 RCW, a health maintenance orga-
nization registered under chapter 48.46 RCW, a self-funded 
multiple employer welfare arrangement authorized under 
chapter 48.125 RCW, or other entity regulated under Title 48 
RCW and required to comply with the NAIC Accounting 
Practices and Procedures Manual and state prescribed 
accounting practices.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, and 48.46.200. 09-03-102 
(Matter No. R 2008-26), § 284-07-500, filed 1/21/09, effective 2/21/09.]

284-07-510WAC 284-07-510  Prior approval required for a 
domestic insurer to use permitted accounting practice. (1) 
If a domestic insurer wishes to use a permitted accounting 
practice, the domestic insurer must obtain prior written 
approval of the permitted accounting practice from the com-
missioner.

(2) An insurer must submit its request for a permitted 
accounting practice to the commissioner in writing.

(3) A request for a permitted accounting practice must be 
received by the commissioner more than thirty days prior to 
its proposed effective date and may not be used until thirty 
days after the commissioner has approved the practice in 
writing. For good cause shown, the commissioner may 
reduce either time period.

(4) Instructions as to how and where a domestic insurer 
must send its request for a permitted accounting practice to 
the commissioner may be found on the commissioner's web 
site at www.insurance.wa.gov.

(5) The insurer may not implement any permitted prac-
tice prior to written approval by the commissioner.

(6) An insurer may use only those permitted accounting 
practices which have been specifically approved for that 
insurer and only for the time period permitted by the commis-
sioner.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, and 48.46.200. 09-03-102 
(Matter No. R 2008-26), § 284-07-510, filed 1/21/09, effective 2/21/09.]

284-07-520WAC 284-07-520  Information to be included in a 
permitted accounting practice request. A request for a per-
mitted accounting practice must contain, at a minimum, all of 
the following information:

(1) The proposed effective date and the date of the first 
filed financial statement in which the proposed permitted 
accounting practice will be reported;

(2) A detailed description of the permitted accounting 
practice being requested, including specific citation to the 
NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual or state 
prescribed accounting practices from which the proposed 
permitted accounting practice will depart;

(3) The periods, if any, in which the proposed permitted 
accounting practice was previously in effect;

(4) The period in which the proposed permitted account-
ing practice will be effective (e.g., specific beginning and 
ending dates);

(5) Specific identification of each financial statement 
line item and its respective impact from the proposed permit-
ted accounting practice. The respective impact must compare 
the financial statements prepared in accordance with RCW 
48.05.073, 48.36A.263, 48.43.097, or 48.125.090(2) and 
financial statements incorporating the permitted accounting 
practices;
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(6) The total financial impact on the capital and surplus 
of the proposed permitted accounting practice and any other 
previously granted permitted accounting practices. The total 
impact must compare the financial statements prepared in 
accordance with RCW 48.05.073, 48.36A.263, 48.43.097, or 
48.125.090(2) and financial statements incorporating the per-
mitted accounting practice; and

(7) The capital and surplus effect of the proposed permit-
ted accounting practice, on a legal entity basis, on the domes-
tic insurer, its ultimate and intermediate parents and all affil-
iated United States insurers. The capital and surplus effect 
must compare the financial statements prepared in accor-
dance with RCW 48.05.073, 48.36A.263, 48.43.097, or 
48.125.090(2) and financial statements incorporating the per-
mitted accounting practice on a legal entity basis on the 
domestic insurer, its ultimate and intermediate parents and all 
affiliated United States insurers.

[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, and 48.46.200. 09-03-102 
(Matter No. R 2008-26), § 284-07-520, filed 1/21/09, effective 2/21/09.]

284-07-530

WAC 284-07-530  Expiration of a permitted account-
ing practice. The commissioner may only approve a request 
to use a permitted accounting practice for up to one calendar 
year.  All permitted practices will expire no later than 
December 31.  An insurer wishing to continue the permitted 
practice must file a new permitted practice request with the 
commissioner.  Permitted accounting practices that were pre-
viously approved by the commissioner that remain in effect 
as of the effective date of this rule which do not have a spe-
cific termination date will expire upon any change of control 
of the insurer or December 31, 2010, whichever occurs first.

[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050, and 48.46.200. 09-03-102 
(Matter No. R 2008-26), § 284-07-530, filed 1/21/09, effective 2/21/09.]

BIOGRAPHICAL AFFIDAVITS

284-07-600

WAC 284-07-600  Definitions. For the purposes of this 
regulation, WAC 284-07-610 and 284-07-620, called the bio-
graphical affidavits regulation, the following definitions 
apply:

(1) A "biographical affidavit" means the current National 
Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) Biographi-
cal Affidavit, Form 11, available on the NAIC's web site at 
www.naic.org.

(2) A "domestic insurer" includes an entity organized 
under the laws of this state, domiciled in this state or using 
this state as its state of entry including:

(a) An insurer authorized under chapter 48.05 RCW.
(b) A fraternal benefit society as defined in RCW 

48.36A.010 and authorized under chapter 48.36A RCW.
(c) A health care service contractor defined in RCW 

48.44.010 and registered under chapter 48.44 RCW.
(d) A health maintenance organization defined in RCW 

48.46.020 and registered under chapter 48.46 RCW.
(e) A self-funded multiple employer welfare arrange-

ment defined in RCW 48.125.010 and authorized under chap-
ter 48.125 RCW.

(f) An alien insurer authorized under chapter 48.05 RCW 
and subject to the requirements under chapter 48.35 RCW.

(3) A "foreign insurer" or an "alien insurer" are as 
defined in RCW 48.05.010 and authorized under chapter 
48.05 RCW. 

(4) An "officer" or "director" includes:
(a) A controlling individual as defined in RCW 48.31B.-

005(2) and 48.31C.010(3);
(b) An executive officer as defined in WAC 284-18-340 

and 284-18A-340; and
(c) Key management personnel who control the opera-

tions of a domestic, foreign or alien insurer.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.36A.290, 48.44.050, 48.46.030, 
and 48.46.200. 11-24-087 (Matter No. R 2011-19), § 284-07-600, filed 
12/7/11, effective 1/7/12.]

284-07-610

WAC 284-07-610  Filing requirements for foreign 
and alien insurers. (1) Foreign and alien insurers must file a 
biographical affidavit for each officer or director as specified 
by the NAIC Uniform Certificate of Authority Application 
(UCAA) as part of an application for certificate of authority 
or certificate of registration.

(2) Alien insurers authorized under chapter 48.35 RCW 
must meet the requirements of WAC 284-07-620.

(3) Biographical affidavits must be investigated and ver-
ified by a vendor authorized by the NAIC to perform a state, 
national, or international history background check.  Verifi-
cation reports must be submitted directly to the commissioner 
by the background investigation agency.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.36A.290, 48.44.050, 48.46.030, 
and 48.46.200. 11-24-087 (Matter No. R 2011-19), § 284-07-610, filed 
12/7/11, effective 1/7/12.]

284-07-620

WAC 284-07-620  Filing requirements for domestic 
insurers. (1) Domestic insurers must file a biographical affi-
davit:

(a) For each officer or director as part of an application 
for a solicitation permit, certificate of authority, or certificate 
of registration.

(b) Within thirty business days after:
(i) An individual becomes an officer or director;
(ii) A material change of filed information required in 

the biographical affidavit; or
(iii) At the request of the commissioner.
(c) Within fifteen business days, of any information con-

cerning the conviction of an officer or director of a felony or 
the naming of an officer or director, other than as a party 
plaintiff or complainant, in a criminal or civil action in which 
fraud is an issue.

(d) Every thirty-six months after the last biographical 
affidavit filed.

(2) An officer or director may choose to list all affiliate 
insurers and insurers under common control on one biograph-
ical affidavit in lieu of filing a separate form for each affili-
ated insurer.

(3) Biographical affidavits must be investigated and ver-
ified by a vendor authorized by the NAIC to perform a state, 
national, or international history background check.  Verifi-
cation reports must be submitted directly to the commissioner 
by the background investigation agency.
[Statutory Authority:  RCW 48.02.060, 48.36A.290, 48.44.050, 48.46.030, 
and 48.46.200. 11-24-087 (Matter No. R 2011-19), § 284-07-620, filed 
12/7/11, effective 1/7/12.]
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